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I. Nature of the Petition 

Petitioner Edgar Naranjo, by his attorney Steven A. Drizin and law students, Megan 

Grenville, Marissa Jackson, and Alix Johnson, of Northwestern University School of Law’s 

Bluhm Legal Clinic, respectfully applies, pursuant to Article 5, Section 12 of the Illinois 

Constitution and 730 ILCS 5/3-3-13 and the rules of the Illinois Prisoner Review Board, for a 

grant of executive clemency in the form of a commutation of sentence to time-served. Edgar is 

currently serving a forty-year sentence for first-degree murder (felony murder) and has served 

over eighteen years of that sentence.  His projected outdate is September 27, 2042.  Edgar 

submitted a petition for executive clemency on October 13, 2020. It is docket number 36712. 

This is intended to serve as an addendum to his pro se petition.   

This is yet another case in a long line of cases highlighting the unfairness of Illinois’ 

felony-murder law and the ways in which the rule, when coupled with Illinois’ harsh mandatory 

sentencing laws, leads to punishments that are disproportionate to the crime. The unfairness of 

the felony murder rule is especially apparent in cases like Edgar’s, where Edgar is serving 

murder-time because a Chicago police officer shot and killed Johnny Salazar, his fourteen-year-

old accomplice, as Edgar and Johnny fled on foot from a failed attempted robbery and home 

invasion.  The unfairness of applying the felony murder rule to such circumstances alone would 

be a powerful ground for commutation.  But, since Edgar’s conviction and sentence, new facts 

have emerged, and new laws have been enacted which only underscore the unfairness of his 

sentence. 

First, facts have emerged which cast doubt on the police narrative of the events that led to 

Johnny’s death, including the narrative given to the press by police spokesperson Pat Camden in 
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the immediate aftermath of the shooting and the narrative put forth by the Cook County State’s 

Attorney at Edgar’s bail hearing and at trial. These new facts – many of which emerged during 

the successful wrongful death civil lawsuit filed by the family of Johnny Salazar1 – cast an 

entirely different light on the crime and, more importantly, on whether Officer Rafael Balbontin 

was justified in using deadly force against Edgar and Johnny.2   

Second, in the past year, Illinois has enacted the SAFE-T Act, a new omnibus criminal 

justice reform bill which, among other things, has changed the law of felony murder.  Because at 

the time of Edgar’s offense, Illinois applied the strictest form of liability for felony murder, 

extending it to cases where a third-party kills an accomplice during the course of a felony, 

defendants, like Edgar, were often over-punished. The “proximate cause” theory of liability in 

use at the time of Edgar’s arrest, has come under intense criticism in recent years, especially in 

cases in which police officers or other third parties kill a suspected felon’s accomplices.3 This 

criticism led to the changes enacted by the SAFE-T Act, which now prevents the felony murder 

rule from being used in cases where third parties, like police officers, intervene in crimes and kill 

 
1 On October 4, 2007, a civil jury awarded the Salazar family $5,007,841in their wrongful death lawsuit against the 
City of Chicago and Officer Rafael Balbontin.  Damages were later reduced to $4,006,273 after the jury found that 
Officer Balbontin was 80% culpable in causing Salazar’s death and Johnny was 20% culpable. The amount was 
ultimately settled with the Salazar family for $2,250,000. 
2 The comments made by police and prosecutors in Edgar’s case are eerily similar to the recent comments made by 
police and prosecutors in the police-involved shooting death of another teenager from the Little Village 
neighborhood – a 13-year old Chicago boy named Adam Toledo.  In both cases, police spokespersons quickly 
described the shootings as “justified” and the officer’s actions as “heroic.” See Jordan Williams, Chicago Police 
Union Head calls Adam Toledo Shooting “Justified,” Says “Officer’s Actions Actually Heroic,” The Hill (Apr. 16, 
2021 8:27 AM EDT), https://thehill.com/homenews/state-watch/548607-chicago-police-union-head-calls-adam-
toledo-shooting-justified-says. In both cases, Cook County prosecutors made inaccurate statements about the 
shootings in court during bail hearings.  The difference in the two cases is that today, with greater transparency and 
the quick release of body cam footage on the Civilian Office of Police Accountability (“COPA”) website, these false 
narratives of culpability can be checked before they do additional damage in criminal court proceedings.  
Unfortunately for Edgar, such transparency did not exist at the time of Salazar’s death and it took until years after 
his conviction, during the civil suit filed by Salazar’s family, for the truth about the shooting to be revealed.   
3 See Exhibit 1, Alison Flowers & Sarah Macaraeg, Charged with Murder, but they Didn’t Kill Anyone—Police Did 
(Aug. 18, 2016). 
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co-actors.  Although the law is not retroactive, this Board and Governor can consider the fact that 

Edgar would likely not be charged with felony murder if he committed his crime today, in 

assessing whether his forty-year sentence fits his crime.   

Third, in the wake of the police shootings of Laquan McDonald and Breonna Taylor and 

the unlawful use of deadly force by Minneapolis police officer Derek Chauvin in the killing of 

George Floyd, policymakers around the country are focusing on tightening the circumstances 

under which police officers can use deadly force.  The SAFE-T Act contained new provisions 

aimed at clarifying the circumstances under which police officers can use deadly force against 

felons fleeing from their crimes.  Under these provisions, police officers may no longer use 

deadly force against fleeing felons unless officers have reason to believe that the fleeing felons 

cannot be apprehended later and that they are likely to cause great bodily harm to another person.  

Neither of these circumstances existed in Edgar’s case and today, Officer Balbontin’s shooting of 

Salazar and Edgar would be given much greater scrutiny and likely would not have been deemed 

“justified.” 

Fourth, Edgar’s forty-year sentence seems especially unfair when compared to the 

sentence that Officer Balbontin later received after he intentionally stabbed his wife to death and 

stabbed his mother-in-law when she tried to intervene on January 18, 2005. For his premeditated 

and planned murder, Officer Balbontin was sentenced to only twenty-five years in prison – 

fifteen years less than Edgar is serving for felony murder, caused by Officer Balbontin’s fatal 

shooting of Johnny. Edgar should not be required to serve more time for his less serious crime of 

an attempted home invasion than Officer Balbontin is currently serving for his brutal and 

senseless murder. 
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Finally, Edgar has proven to be a model individual during his time in prison and will 

positively contribute to society upon release. He has a strong support system waiting for him in 

Mexico, where he will move once released.  

II. Required Information  

A. The Relevant Conviction 

In October 2002, Edgar was charged with first-degree felony murder, home invasion, 

residential burglary and attempted armed robbery in Cook County. His criminal case number is 

No. 02CR27730. On February 24, 2004, Edgar was convicted of residential burglary and first-

degree felony murder predicated on home invasion and sentenced to forty years for murder, and 

ten years for residential burglary, to be served concurrently, by Judge Diana L. Kenworthy. 

Absent the felony murder count, Edgar would still face the home invasion conviction under 720 

ILCS 5/19-6, which typically carries a sentencing range of six to thirty years. Because Edgar did 

not carry or discharge a firearm, or otherwise injure anyone, he would likely not be subject to 

any enhancements and as such would receive a sentence at the lower end or middle of that range. 

To date, Edgar has served eighteen years of his forty-year sentence, meaning he has already 

served more time than he likely would have received for the home invasion. His projected parole 

date is September 27, 2042 and his projected discharge date is September 27, 2045. Edgar has no 

pending court appeals at this time.  
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Edgar is a Mexican national, he is not married and has never served in the military. His 

state prisoner number is R28771, and his last known social security number is 357-80-35684. His 

mailing address is:  

Mr. Edgar Naranjo, #R28771 
Dixon Correctional Center  
2600 N. Brinton Avenue  

Dixon, IL 61021 
 

B. Prior Criminal History 

On information and belief,5 Edgar has the following criminal history; none of these 

arrests resulted in a felony conviction. On March 9, 1993, Edgar was arrested for retail theft. 

Edgar was seventeen years old and was preparing for homecoming. He and a friend went to JC 

Penney, and Edgar stole a tie and suspenders. This charge was stricken off with leave to 

reinstate. On November 13, 1995, Edgar was arrested for possession of a controlled substance. 

After being pulled over driving, the police saw a crushed green plant, five capsules of suspected 

LSD, and seven small packets of suspected LSD.6 On May 21, 1998, Edgar was arrested for 

possession of a firearm and two counts of attempt.7 Police reports indicate this was a stun gun.8 

He pleaded guilty to two misdemeanor counts of possession of a firearm. He had a $100 fine. 

The counts on attempt were nolle prosequi. On February 25, 1999, Edgar was arrested for 

producing a fraudulent insurance card.9 On May 19, 2001, Edgar was arrested for domestic 

 
4 Social Security number may no longer be active.   
5 We are stating “on information and belief” because we have not been able to verify the full extent of Edgar’s 
criminal record, due, in part, to difficulties obtaining records during the COVID crisis. An Accurint background 
check, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, only includes the charges and convictions in relation to this felony murder 
conviction.  Records we received from the Cook County Clerk’s Office and the Chicago Police Department, 
attached hereto as Exhibit 4, include the additional charges described here.  
6 Unable to verify outcome of case.  
7 Unable to verify what the counts of attempt were for.  
8 See Exhibit 2. 
9 Unable to verify outcome of case.  
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battery. The charges were stricken off with leave to reinstate. On July 10, 2002, Edgar was 

arrested for battery.10 

C. Non-Public Hearing 

Edgar Naranjo requested a public hearing in his pro se petition filed on October 13, 2020. 

Edgar would now like to request a non-public hearing on his petition for clemency due to the fact 

that public hearings are not occurring due to COVID-19. Edgar requests that the Prisoner Review 

Board and Governor Pritzker diligently consider Edgar’s petition at the earliest possible time.  

III. Personal Life History  

Edgar Naranjo was born on September 1, 1976 in Mexico City to his parents, Zenaido 

and Celia Naranjo. The couple was married in Mexico City, and had three children together: two 

sons and one daughter. They migrated to the United States in 1982, when Edgar was six years 

old, with hopes of giving the family a better future. The family moved to the Little Village 

neighborhood on Chicago’s southside, where they became employed in the food industry. By 

1990, Edgar’s parents had opened a Mexican Restaurant, Greenhouse Steaks. Growing up, Edgar 

recalls being very close to his family. Edgar went to neighborhood public schools for elementary 

and middle school.  He attended Bogan High School, beginning in the 9th grade, and graduated in 

1995. Edgar always loved his English and Spanish classes.  

As early as he can remember, Edgar worked in the family business to help support his 

parents and siblings. In 1990, when Greenhouse Steaks opened, he began working there. His 

parents had strong work ethics, were always attentive to his personal needs, and made sure he 

 
10 Unable to verify outcome of case.  
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had everything he needed to give himself a good life. Though his parents cared for him very 

much, he became overwhelmed by the hard work. Edgar often worked fifteen-hour days at the 

restaurant, while also juggling school. Weekends provided no respite from work.  On the 

weekends, he worked at a local flea market, selling his parents’ food.    

At seventeen, Edgar moved out of his parents’ house.  This is where his troubles began.  

He started experimenting with drugs and began making bad, impulsive choices. Edgar soon 

became addicted to cocaine. When Edgar’s parents learned of his drug addiction, they 

intervened, sending him to Mexico, where he was admitted into a twelve-step rehabilitation 

program. Edgar successfully completed the program and apologized to his parents. They forgave 

him and agreed to allow him to move back into their house to start over once his treatment was 

completed.  

Edgar hoped to go home, find a job, and marry his childhood sweetheart and girlfriend. 

However, when Edgar returned to Chicago, he discovered that his girlfriend had started a 

relationship with someone else. He took this news very hard, and, unsure how to cope with pain, 

he relapsed and turned to drugs.  Edgar was under the influence of marijuana and cocaine at the 

time of the crime. 

Edgar has never served in the military and has never been married. He has remained 

extremely close to his parents, his sister, Yuri Martinez, and his brother, Alex Naranjo.  

IV. The Offense 

A. Offense on October 4, 2002 

At the time of the offense, Edgar was, at twenty-six years old, in the throes of his drug 

addiction. He had been kicked out of his parents’ home and was living in the basement of the 
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family home of his friend, Juan “Johnny” Salazar.  Edgar needed money to support his addiction 

and to survive.  Strung out and broke, Edgar came up with an idea to make some quick money by 

robbing a man who sold colognes at the flea market where he worked. 

On the rainy morning of October 4, 2002, Edgar borrowed his cousin’s car. Edgar then 

returned to the Salazar home and picked up Johnny, who was fourteen years old at the time. The 

pair had previously discussed the robbery, and Johnny had insisted on coming along. The pair 

had no real plan. Edgar knew Juan Balbontin from the flea market where his family worked. Juan 

sold colognes at the flea market, and the pair were hoping to steal some of the bottles of cologne 

and then sell them for a profit. The plan was filled with holes; they did not know how or where 

they would actually sell the colognes, or even how they would transport them from the 

Balbontins’ home.  They did not even bring anything with them to carry the colognes.  

After picking Johnny up, but before proceeding to Juan Balbontin’s house, Johnny called 

to make sure Juan was home. Juan’s son, Rafael Balbontin, who, unbeknownst to either of the 

men, was a rookie Chicago police officer, answered the telephone and handed it to his father. 

Rafael and his wife and child were living in the basement of the Balbontin family home at the 

time of the offense. After handing the phone to his father, Rafael retired to the basement. 

Edgar and Johnny then drove to the home of Juan and Juana Balbontin on the 3000 block 

of North New England Avenue. When they got there, the two men parked the car down the street 

from the Balbontin home. They both wore bright yellow rain ponchos and face masks, and 

Johnny carried an unloaded BB gun which Edgar had purchased at a local flea market.   
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What was planned to be only a quick and simple robbery quickly turned into a deadly 

police-involved shooting. Johnny knocked on the door. Juan’s wife, Juana, answered the door, 

and Edgar and Johnny forced their way into the house.  After Juana began screaming, Edgar told 

her to “shut up” while Johnny was pointing the BB gun at her. Juan heard the commotion and ran 

to her rescue, striking Edgar from his blind-side with a mop wringer. 

Things happened so fast, catching both Edgar and Johnny by surprise, and they didn’t 

know what to do at the time. Johnny attempted to take the mop wringer from Juan, at which 

time, his wife, Juana, yelled in Spanish “they have a gun,” and started to scream. Hearing his 

mother’s screams, Rafael Balbontin, a rookie Chicago Police officer, who had been on the police 

force for only ten months, grabbed his service gun and ran upstairs to help his mother.  Edgar 

and Johnny panicked, fled the house, and took off running down the street. In total, they were in 

the home for only a few minutes. Edgar never even saw Officer Rafael Balbontin in the home.  

He and Johnny had already abandoned their plan. 

Officer Balbontin followed Edgar and Johnny outside and yelled, “Chicago Police, 

freeze.” The men continued to flee.  When they did not stop, Officer Balbontin aimed and fired, 

shooting eight bullets in their direction. His reckless barrage of bullets killed Johnny with two 

shots and wounded Edgar in the right hand.  He even accidentally shot his own father, who was 

in the line of fire, in the right shoulder. After Johnny fell to the ground, Edgar picked Johnny up, 

helped him into the car, and drove away.  

As Edgar was driving down the expressway, he threw the BB gun and the yellow 

ponchos out of the car’s window. Edgar then drove to an industrial area where he placed 

Johnny’s lifeless body on a curb and left. Edgar continued home, threw his sweatshirt and hat 



   
 

 12 

into a garbage can and drove himself to the hospital to have the gunshot wound on his hand 

treated. The hospital staff alerted law enforcement authorities that a person arrived with a 

gunshot wound, and the police soon arrived and questioned him. At first, Edgar made up a story 

to explain his injury, sending the officers off on a bogus chase. However, when the officers 

returned to question Edgar further, the weight of feelings of guilt caused him to break down and 

confess to the home invasion.  

B. The Chicago Police Department’s Inconsistent Version of Events 

In the immediate aftermath of the shooting, Pat Camden, a police spokesperson, gave 

interviews to the press about the circumstances of the shooting. He described Officer Rafael 

Balbontin’s actions as “heroic” and said that Edgar and Johnny both had guns (“the two had 

guns”).11 According to Camden, a police panel had cleared Balbontin, finding that he had acted 

“in fear of his life.”12  A few days later, at Edgar’s bail hearing, a Cook County Assistant State’s 

Attorney embellished the story even further, telling the court that “one of them turned and pulled 

the trigger several times, but the gun did not fire.”13  At a later date, Camden told the press that 

after Balbontin identified himself as a police officer, “he saw one of the two with a gun.” 

Based on information discovered in Salazar’s civil suit, we now know that each of these 

accounts was untrue.  In his deposition in connection with the Salazar family’s civil suit, Officer 

Balbontin said he was off-duty and laying on his bed in his parent’s basement when Edgar and 

Johnny entered the home. He hadn’t worked that day or the day before and remembered feeling 

 
11 Nevala, Amy E., Shooting By Officer Justified, Police Say; Cops Believe Body May Be Intruders, Chicago 
Tribune (Oct. 6, 2002). Attached as Exhibit 6. 
12 Id. 
13 Suspect Shot at Cop’s Home Denied Bail, Chicago Tribune (Oct. 7, 2002). Attached as Exhibit 7.  
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“fully refreshed” the day of the offense.14 He heard the commotion of the entry, heard his mother 

shout “they have a gun” in Spanish, and ran upstairs.15 As he approached the first floor, he saw 

Edgar and Johnny running out the front door. He could not see their hands or arms because they 

were covered by yellow rain ponchos. At no point during his brief, deadly encounter with the 

two men did he see any sign of any weapon.16 

According to Balbontin, after the men had run a few paces outside of the house, he 

yelled, “Chicago Police, freeze,” and, according to Balbontin, Edgar and Johnny both came to a 

complete stop.17 Officer Balbontin testified that that Johnny, “jerked real quick and made a 

furtive movement” when he told him to freeze.18 At that moment, Officer Balbontin, who had 

never fired his service weapon on the job before, fired eight shots.19 

The evidence does not support key aspects of Mr. Camden’s account,20 Officer 

Balbontin’s account, or the account described by the Assistant State’s Attorney at Edgar’s bail 

hearing. First, Johnny’s autopsy revealed that he was shot in the back, which is inconsistent with 

 
14 Balbontin, Rafael Deposition in Salazar Civil Suit, Exhibit 8, page 24. 
15 Id. at page 56.  
16 Id. at page 76.  
17 Id. at page 77.  
18 Id. at page 78.  
19 Balbontin’s testimony in the civil deposition conflicted with the testimony he gave at Edgar’s trial.  At the trial, he 
testified that after he yelled at the men to “freeze,” the men didn’t stop running so he continued to chase them.  He 
opened fire when saw one of them “turn and crouch” a little.  See Naranjo v. McCann, 2009 WL 2231775,  * 1 
(N.D. Ill. 2008).  
20 Mr. Camden routinely stretched the truth in his statements to the media after police-involved shootings, a fact 
which became evident after the video of the Laquan McDonald shooting was finally released.  In that case, it was 
Mr. Camden who first told the media that McDonald had lunged at police officers with a knife before he was shot 
and killed.  In a story published by the Reader, journalists found that in a staggering 15 of 35 cases in which Mr. 
Camden provided initial accounts of fatal shootings by police to the media, key aspects of Mr. Camden’s statements 
were later proven to false or misleading by evidence later uncovered in lawsuits, by video, or through media 
investigations.  See Yana Kunichoff & Sam Stecklow, How Chicago’s ‘Fraternal Order of Propaganda Shapes the 
Story of Police Shootings,  The Reader, February 3, 2016, available at: 
https://www.chicagoreader.com/chicago/fraternal-order-of-police-shootings-propaganda-pat-
camden/Content?oid=21092544 
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both Officer Balbontin’s account of Johnny turning toward him and “crouching a little” and with 

the statement made by the Assistant State’s Attorney that “one of them turned” toward 

Balbontin.21  Second, there is no evidence that both offenders had guns, that either offender 

pointed a gun at Balbontin, or that either offender attempted to fire a gun at Balbontin.  In his 

deposition for the civil suit, Officer Balbontin testified that the two men did not pose any threat 

to his life until he chased them and yelled “Chicago Police; Freeze,”22 and that he never saw 

either of the men holding a weapon. Additionally, although Officer Balbontin stated he did not 

fire until after he confronted them and began to fear for his life, physical evidence was presented 

in the civil suit that indicated Balbontin started firing at the doorway.23   

This new evidence not only demonstrates that the narratives of law enforcement kept 

changing, but it also raises questions about the Chicago Police Department’s quick decision to 

clear Balbontin and find that the shooting was justified.  If Balbontin never saw a gun and if 

neither man stopped and turned to face Balbontin, and if he did, in fact, open fire from the 

doorway, his belief that he feared for his life was not reasonable under the circumstances.   

The CPD held an internal roundtable meeting the evening of the offense to determine 

whether the shooting was justified, but little is known about its details. Officer Balbontin 

provided a brief statement during this roundtable meeting, after which he was put on probation, 

but took only two or three days off from work.24 

 
21 Compare Naranjo v. McCann, 2009 WL 2231775,  * 1 (N.D. Ill. 2008); Suspect Shot at Cop’s Home Denied Bail, 
Chicago Tribune (Oct. 7, 2002). 
22 Balbontin, Rafael Deposition in Salazar Civil Suit, p. 79. 
23 Karoun Demirilan, City to Pay Damages in Death, Chicago Tribune (Oct. 6, 2007) 
https://www.chicagotribune.com/news/ct-xpm-2007-10-06-0710050726-story.html.  
24 Balbontin, Rafael Deposition in Salazar Civil Suit, page 130. 
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C. Trial and Subsequent Attempts at Relief  

On October 4, 2002, Edgar was arrested and charged with first-degree felony murder 

predicated on home invasion and residential burglary. Following a bench trial, Edgar was 

convicted of first-degree murder.  He was sentenced to forty years for murder and received a ten-

year sentence for residential burglary; the sentences were to run concurrently. Edgar’s murder 

conviction and sentence were affirmed on direct appeal.25  

Over the years, Edgar has filed numerous appeals and post-conviction pleadings 

challenging his conviction and sentence.  On direct appeal, Edgar argued that 1) the State did not 

prove felony murder beyond a reasonable doubt; and 2) his conviction for felony murder violated 

the one-act, one-crime rule.26 The appellate court affirmed his murder conviction but vacated 

Edgar’s conviction and sentence for residential burglary based on the one-act, one-crime rule.27  

Edgar subsequently filed a Petition for Leave to Appeal to the Illinois Supreme Court, arguing 

that the proximate cause theory of liability in criminal convictions afforded him less rights than a 

similarly situated defendant in a civil case, but was denied.28  

After exhausting all of his state court remedies on direct appeal, Edgar filed for Post-

Conviction Relief, alleging six grounds for relief: 1) the indictment did not set forth the elements 

of the statute in violation of the Due Process clauses of the United States and Illinois 

Constitutions; 2) the State failed to prove him guilty of first degree murder; 3) ineffective 

representation by trial counsel for failing to contest the indictment; 4) ineffective representation 

by appellate counsel for failing to raise the ineffectiveness of trial counsel; 5) ineffective 

 
25 People v. Naranjo, No. 1-04-1137, 1 (1st Dist. Nov. 30, 2005). 
26 Id. At 10; Naranjo v. McCann, No. 08 C 7358, 2009 WL 2231775, at *1 (N.D. Ill. Jul. 27, 2009). 
27 Id. 
28 Naranjo v. McCann, 2009 WL 2231775, at *2.  
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representation by appellate counsel for failing to contest invalidity of indictment; and that 6) the 

order of the Appellate Court affirming his conviction denied him the right to know the nature and 

cause of the accusation and violated due process.29 The post-conviction court dismissed the 

petition without giving Edgar an evidentiary hearing.30  

Edgar appealed the decision of the circuit court arguing that: 1) the indictment did not 

properly charge a crime; 2) the State failed to prove him guilty of first-degree murder; and 3) the 

affirmance of the conviction by the appellate court violated due process.31  The Appellate Court 

affirmed the dismissal of his petition.32 Edgar’s subsequent petition for leave to appeal to the 

Illinois Supreme Court was also denied.33 

In 2009, Edgar filed a Writ for Habeas Corpus Relief in federal court, alleging that 1) his 

indictment was insufficient because it did not set forth all the elements of first-degree murder; 2) 

the affirmation of his conviction by the Illinois Appellate Court was outside the scope of the 

first-degree murder statute; and 3) the State did not prove all the elements of first-degree murder 

beyond a reasonable doubt.34 This petition was denied by the court.35 He subsequently filed a 

notice of appeal, which was also denied.36 

 
29 Id.  
30 Id.  
31 Id.  
32 Id.  
33 Id. 
34 Id.  
35 Id. at 11.  
36 Naranjo v. McCann, No. 08 C 7358, 2009 WL 2778010 (N.D. Ill. Aug. 31, 2009).  
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In 2019, Edgar filed a Successive Petition for Post-Conviction Relief, but the trial court 

refused to allow him to file another petition.37 By November 6, 2020, Edgar had exhausted all of 

state court legal remedies.  His only remaining option is clemency.  

 

V. Personal Statement 

My name is Edgar Naranjo. I was born on September 1, 1976, in Mexico City to Zenaido 

and Celia Naranjo. My parents have been married for 44 years. Since the day I was born they 

have set an incredible example for my brother, sister, and me, and have provided me with 

unconditional love. To this day, my family and I remain very close.  

At six years old, my parents moved our family to the United States, to try to give us a 

better life. I grew up on the Southside of Chicago, in the Little Village Neighborhood, where I 

attended school and worked at my family’s restaurant. As soon as I was old enough, I worked at 

the family business, sometimes for 15 hours a day. I also worked on the weekends at a local flea 

market selling our food. My parents thought it was very important to pass their work ethic on to 

us. As a young boy, this was hard. I was juggling both work and school, and also just wanted to 

be a teenager. At 17, the pressure had gotten to me. I moved out of my parents' home and began 

making bad decisions and experimenting with drugs. I became addicted to the drugs and my life 

spiraled out of control. The unconditional love of my parents led them to try to help me, by 

sending me to a rehabilitation program in Mexico. When I completed the program, I thought I 

would return to Chicago and start a new life. I apologized to my parents and was hoping to 

 
37 People v. Naranjo, No. 1-19-1697.  
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reconnect with my girlfriend, marry her and start a family of my own. However, after returning, 

my girlfriend had moved on. I again turned to drugs and started making bad decisions.  

There is no excuse for the bad decisions I made, and I cannot justify what I did. However, 

I know now that I was extremely immature at this time in my life. When I got to prison and was 

living with men the same age as me, I realized I did not speak, think, or act like them. I prayed to 

God that I would start to mature. I began to see clearly that I was underdeveloped, compared to 

other men my age. I was 26 years old, but my mind was that of a teenager. It is part of the reason 

I hung out with people like Johnny, who were much younger than me. It is also part of the reason 

I made the stupid plan to commit a robbery.  

The worst of these decisions was the decision to commit a robbery with my friend, 

Johnny Salazar. I am constantly overcome with guilt, shame and remorse over the pain that 

decision caused. I will forever live with the pain I caused. Johnny was only fourteen years old; 

he never got to live his life.  He was a good friend to me, and I should never have agreed to take 

him with me.  I know I made a horrible mistake, and I take full responsibility for that. I hope to 

one day be able to express my deepest apologies to the Salazar family for my part in Johnny’s 

death.  

My time in prison has given me the opportunity to think about my mistakes. My 

incarceration has provided me with plenty of time for self-reflection. I have been able to really 

understand the impact my actions caused. Looking back at that day, nearly 20 years later, I wish 

more than anything I could go back and make different decisions. Different decisions would 

have changed the trajectory of my life. I wish I had sought treatment again. I wish I had turned to 

my many family members who wanted to help. I now realize how lucky I was to have people 
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who really loved me and would have continued to support me in my efforts to get my life back 

on track. I know I have no excuses for the mistakes I made.  

However, I have become a better man throughout my time in prison. I have been 

continuously employed, taking every job I could possibly take. I also have consistently been 

enrolled in educational classes.38 I have not had any fights, or engaged in any violent behavior, 

nor have I been placed in disciplinary segregation.39 Most importantly, I have devoted my life to 

Christ, which has allowed me to be free from the bondages of addiction and crime.  

I am a changed man since my arrest on October 4, 2002. My incarceration has given me 

the time to rehabilitate myself, and I want to start a new life, as the new man I have become. I 

hope to be able to get out of prison at an age that I can get married and have children. My sister, 

Yuri, is 38 years of age, happily married, and has 3 children of her own—identical twin girls and 

a boy. Their names are Valentina (6), Victoria (6) and Santiago (7). Yuri, and her husband, 

Neris, are co-partners in a very successful automotive business. They have found their 

opportunity to do well for themselves and are taking advantage of the “American Dream.” My 

brother, Alex Naranjo, 44 years of age, works at a factory and is currently a manager. He has two 

children and is a wonderful father and companion to his children. He loves family life and has 

really grown into his responsibilities. I have maintained close relationships with my whole 

family, and their love has been unconditional. 

I want to be a better son, brother, uncle, as well as a productive member of society. I want 

to return to my country of birth, to Mexico City. My cousin currently lives there, and I have 

 
38 Transcript attached as Exhibit 10. 
39 Disciplinary History attached as Exhibit 11. 
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immediate employment awaiting me in Mexico City as an interpreter for my cousin’s company. I 

will also be able to live with him. Additionally, my parents own a building in Mexico City, and 

they plan on moving there almost immediately to join me if I am released. I want to be there for 

them when they retire and care for them as they get older.  I want to try to repay them for the 

love and support they have always given me.  I fear that if I am required to serve my full 

sentence that I will not get that chance. My father is 70 and my mother is 68 years old. My father 

will be 92 and my mother will be 90 years old when I am to be released, if they are even still 

around.  

VI. Reasons for Granting Clemency 

A. Edgar’s Conviction is Unjust When Considering the Outcome of the Salazar 
Family Wrongful Death Suit Against the City and New Facts of the Case Which 
Have Emerged Since Edgar’s Conviction 

Following Johnny Salazar’s death, the Salazar family sued the City of Chicago in a 

wrongful death suit. On October 4, 2007, a jury awarded the Salazar family $5,007,841, which 

was reduced to $4,006,273 because the jury found Johnny to be 20% negligent in causing his 

own death.40  In other words, the jury found that Officer Balbontin was 80% culpable in causing 

Salazar’s death.  The City ultimately settled with the Salazar family for $2,250,000.41  

The jury verdict against Balbontin should reduce Edgar’s culpability for Johnny’s death.  

However, none of the facts which cast blame on Balbontin were available for Edgar to use in his 

criminal case.  In criminal cases under the felony murder rule, Balbontin’s reckless conduct does 

not act as a supervening cause of Johnny’s death nor is Edgar entitled to an affirmative defense 

of contributory negligence under the criminal law.  The “proximate cause” theory of criminal 

 
40 Salazar v. City of Chicago, 2007 WL 4947795. 
41 Salazar v. City of Chicago, No. 03L011638, 2009 WL 3866205 (Ill. Cir. Ct. Feb. 06, 2009). 
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liability makes Edgar responsible for any foreseeable deaths that occur as a result of his 

participation in the home invasion.  Because courts have held that police intervention is a 

foreseeable consequence of committing a forcible felony, and that accidental deaths are a 

foreseeable consequence of police intervention, it is often immaterial whether the police use of 

deadly force was not justified. Now, however, in the context of clemency, the relative faults of 

Edgar and Officer Balbontin for Johnny’s death is a relevant and material consideration for this 

Board and the Governor in assessing whether Edgar’s punishment of forty years is too extreme 

for his crime. This Board and the Governor are not bound by the limits placed on the definition 

of “proximate cause” in criminal cases; tort concepts of “proximate causation”, including 

contributory negligence and intervening and supervening causes, can and should be used to 

assess Edgar’s culpability.  

In this context, Officer Balbontin’s actions were so reckless that they became an 

intervening or supervening cause of Johnny’s death. These actions could not have been foreseen 

by Edgar and Johnny, who were inside the Balbontin’s home for a matter of seconds. As soon as 

they were met with resistance – simply being hit with a mop wringer – they abandoned their plan 

and ran out of the house. The robbery was over, and they were running away when Officer 

Balbontin fatally shot Johnny and wounded Edgar. They did not pose a danger to Officer 

Balbontin or anyone else. Officer Balbontin chased them and did not even pause before shooting 

after yelling “Chicago Police, freeze.”42  He was so reckless in unloading his entire clip at the 

men that he even shot his own father. 

 
42 Balbontin, Rafael Deposition in Salazar Civil Suit, pages 77-79. 
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Additionally, over the course of the civil suit, it became even more clear that Officer 

Balbontin did not need to shoot Johnny. In a special interrogatory, the jury was asked if Officer 

Balbontin reasonably believed that it was necessary to use deadly force to defend himself or 

others from death or great bodily harm – they answered “no.”43 

B. Edgar’s Forty-Year Sentence is Disproportionate to His Culpability Due to the 
Overbroad Application of the Outdated Felony Murder Law in Illinois at the Time of 
the Offense.  

At the time of Edgar’s arrest and conviction, Illinois adhered to the “proximate cause” 

theory of liability, holding felons responsible for any foreseeable deaths which occurred during 

the course of committing “forcible felonies”, including the deaths of their co-felons at the hands 

of police officers. Illinois courts had held that police intervention in a forcible felony was a 

“foreseeable consequence” of the felony and that the deaths of co-felons which resulted from 

police shootings were also foreseeable. As a result, Edgar could be charged and convicted of 

felony-murder, even though he neither killed nor intended to kill Johnny. Of the states that have 

felony murder laws, the “proximate cause theory” is only applied in the minority of 

jurisdictions.44 Most states apply the “agency theory” of liability, under which the felony murder 

law is only applied to killings committed by the felon him or herself, or an agent of the felon, 

such as an accomplice.45  

 
43 Salazar v. City of Chicago, 2007 WL 4947795.  
44 Martin Lijtmaer, The Felony Murder Rule in Illinois: The Injustice of the Proximate Cause Theory Explored via 
Research in Cognitive Psychology, 98 The Journal of Law & Criminology 621, 627 (2008). Copies of this article 
can be made available upon request. 
45 Id. 
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On February 22, 2021, Governor Pritzker signed the SAFE-T Act into law.46 The SAFE-

T Act includes a much-needed update to the felony murder law, bringing it into alignment with 

the majority of states.47 The law now requires that in order for a defendant to be convicted of 

felony murder, the defendant or an accomplice must have caused the death.48 Under the law 

today, it is likely that Edgar would not be charged with felony murder, let alone convicted of 

murder in connection with Johnny’s death.  Because this new law is not retroactive, however, the 

only way that Edgar can benefit from this new law is through a commutation of his sentence. The 

fact that Edgar’s actions would no longer be sufficient to charge him with felony murder today is 

a critical consideration for this Board and the Governor and yet another reason why his sentence 

should be commuted to time served. 

C. Edgar’s Forty-Year Sentence is Disproportionate to His Culpability in Light of 
Recent Changes Which Clarify When and Under What Circumstances, Police 
May Use Deadly Force against Fleeing Felons  

At the signing of the SAFE-T Act, Governor Pritzker said, “while there is more work to 

do, justice is being advanced once again today.”49 It is particularly true that there is more work to 

do around the people who are already incarcerated under the previous felony murder law, 

especially in cases in which a police officer shot and killed a co-felon fleeing a crime. In just the 

five years between 2011 and 2016, at least ten-people have been charged with felony murder in 

 
46 Craig Wall, Sarah Schulte, & ABC & Chicago Digital Team, Pritzker Signs Sweeping Police Reform, Criminal 
Justice Bill, Despite Opposition From Law Enforcement, ABC 7 (Feb. 22, 2021) https://abc7chicago.com/pritzker-
signs-sweeping-police-reform-bill/10361126/. 
47 Media Advisory: Felony Murder, Criminal Law Omnibus Bill, Restore Justice Illinois, 
https://restorejusticeillinois.org/media-advisory-felony-murder-criminal-law-omnibus-
bill/#:~:text=The%20omnibus%20contains%20a%20provision%20to%20amend%20Illinois's%20felony%2Dmurde
r%20law.&text=A%20felony%2Dmurder%20conviction%20carries,crashed%20into%20an%20innocent%20bystan
der. 
48 Public Act 101-0652. 
49 Craig Wall, Sarah Schulte, & ABC & Chicago Digital Team, Pritzker Signs Sweeping Police Reform, Criminal 
Justice Bill, Despite Opposition From Law Enforcement, ABC 7 (Feb. 22, 2021) https://abc7chicago.com/pritzker-
signs-sweeping-police-reform-bill/10361126/. 



   
 

 24 

shootings by police and sheriffs.50 The SAFE-T Act makes significant progress here. Not only 

did the SAFE-T Act bring Illinois’s felony murder law in line with most other states, but it also 

provided new guidance on the circumstances under which a police officer may use deadly force 

against fleeing felons.  Now, a police officer must announce his office, provide a warning that 

deadly force will be used, and is not allowed to use deadly force against a fleeing suspect unless 

that suspect has just harmed or tried to harm another person, is in possession of a deadly weapon, 

is an active threat to human life, or would not be able to be apprehended safely at another date.51 

None of these conditions were present to justify Officer Balbontin’s use of deadly force 

against Salazar.  At no point, did he provide any warning before firing a barrage of bullets at 

Edgar and Johnny while they were fleeing. He shot just after yelling “Chicago Police, freeze.”52 

At no point did he ask them to drop a weapon.53 Again, Balbontin never even saw a weapon; he 

never even saw the hands of Johnny or Edgar.54 Edgar and Johnny had not harmed or tried to 

harm anyone, they were not in possession of a deadly weapon,55 they were not an active threat to 

human life as they were simply running away, and there was no reason to think that they could 

not be apprehended safely at a later date. Indeed, Edgar was apprehended quickly after he turned 

up at a local hospital to get his gunshot wound treated. 

It is not necessary for this this Board or the Governor to decide whether Officer 

Balbontin was justified in using deadly force against Johnny Salazar and Edgar Naranjo in order 

 
50 Rita Oceguera, Sweeping Criminal Justice Reform Package Would Curtail Felony Murder Prosecutions in 
Illinois, Injustice Watch (Jan. 12, 2021), https://www.injusticewatch.org/news/2021/criminal-justice-reform-felony-
murder-prosecutions-illinois/. 
51 Public Act 101-0652. 
52 Balbontin, Rafael Deposition in Salazar Civil Suit, pages 77-79. 
53 Id. 
54 Id. at page 75. 
55 Officer Balbontin may have believed that they had a gun, however, because his mom yelled “traen pistola” (they 
have a gun). 
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to determine that Edgar’s forty-year sentence is too extreme for his crime.  But the new facts 

which emerged in Salazar’s successful civil suit and new laws which have been enacted 

concerning the felony murder law and police use of force, have cast the events of October 2002 

in an entirely different light, a new light which suggests that Officer Balbontin bears much of the 

responsibility for Johnny’s death and that Edgar is either not culpable or is less culpable. As a 

result of these changes, if Edgar were convicted today, he would likely be convicted only of 

home invasion – the underlying forcible felony – a crime which carries a sentence of between six 

and thirty years and which requires those convicted to serve at least 50% of their sentences.56 He 

has already served more time than he likely would have received for the home invasion 

conviction. 

D. Edgar’s Forty-Year Sentence is Disproportionate to his Culpability, Highlighted 
by Rafael Balbontin’s Murder Conviction and Twenty-Five Year Sentence 

Four years after the death of Johnny Salazar, and one year after the Salazar family’s 

wrongful death suit, former Chicago police officer Balbontin found himself at the center of 

another tragedy. On January 19, 2005, Balbontin was out to dinner with his parents, when he told 

them he was going home to kill himself. Upon leaving the restaurant, his parents called his wife, 

warning her of his plans, and suggesting she hide all the guns in the home. However, when 

Balbontin arrived home, he ignited a domestic dispute with his wife. He fatally stabbed her over 

twenty times in the head, chest, and back.  He even stabbed his mother-in-law in the arm when 

she tried to intervene. When the police responded to this horrific scene and approached the door 

 
56 720 Ill. Comp. Stat. § 5/19-6 (2020).  
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of his home, Balbontin simply said, “arrest me.”57 Balbontin was found guilty of first-degree 

murder and was sentenced to twenty-five years in prison for the intentional murder of his wife.58 

The difference between Edgar Naranjo’s sentence of forty years in prison when Officer 

Balbontin, as an off-duty police officer, shot and killed his friend and wounded Edgar as they 

were running away from the Balbontin home, and Officer Balbontin’s 25-year sentence for 

intentionally murdering his wife, highlights the unfairness of the felony murder rule.  Balbontin 

is clearly more culpable in his wife’s death than Edgar was in Johnny’s death.  Balbontin also 

committed a second crime, stabbing his mother-in-law when she tried to protect her daughter and 

his sentence does not reflect this additional harm.  This disparity must be rectified.  It is an 

affront to justice and yet another powerful reason for commuting Edgar’s sentence.  Providing 

Edgar with a commutation of sentence is necessary to ensure our criminal justice system doles 

out punishments that are proportional to the crime.  

E. Edgar’s Background, Education, Successful Work While Incarcerated, and 
Family Support Show That He Has Reformed and Will Be a Positive Influence 
in Society Upon Release 

Edgar’s demonstrated rehabilitation and commitment to his faith and helping others show 

that he will be a positive influence in his community upon release. While in prison, Edgar’s 

disciplinary record, attached as Exhibit 11, has remained non-violent. Considering his 

background, Edgar is particularly unlikely to show any violence in the future. 

 
57 Anne Sweeney and Frank Main, Cop Charged with Stabbing Wife to Death, Cʜɪᴄᴀɢᴏ Sᴜɴ-Tɪᴍᴇs, Jan. 20, 2005.  
58 Hal Dardick, Family of Cop Details Slaying, Cʜɪᴄᴀɢᴏ ᴛʀɪʙᴜɴᴇ, Jan. 21, 2005; Karoun Demirjian, City to Pay 
Damages in Death, Cʜɪᴄᴀɢᴏ ᴛʀɪʙᴜɴᴇ, Oct. 6, 2007.  
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Edgar has used his time in prison to better himself, continue his education, and maintain 

consistent employment to ensure his success upon release. He has taken multiple college courses, 

including writing skills and restorative justice classes, and has earned twenty-four credits toward 

his associate’s degree. Edgar plans to complete the necessary credits for his associate’s degree 

and his long-term employment goal is to become a mentor and motivational speaker. He wants to 

share his story of resilience and reformation to inspire others, particularly young people. 

Edgar’s faith has become a central part of his identity and everyday life. While 

incarcerated, he has devoted himself to Christ by reading the Bible every day, completing two 

religious studies programs through United Christian Bible Institute,59 and engaging in regular 

self-reflective practices like journaling. His faith has helped him change into the man he is today 

and help him work through his past mistakes and regrets. Once released, Edgar plans to continue 

his relationship with Christ through reading the Bible, attending church when he settles in 

Mexico, and engaging with the religious community he hopes to find within the church. 

Once released, Edgar will move to Puebla, Mexico, where he will work as an 

administrative assistant and an interpreter for his cousin’s construction company. Edgar is 

bilingual in English and Spanish, and he is excited at the opportunity to use his communication 

skills to further his career. Edgar’s cousin, Gustavo, will provide him with this employment and 

with a place to live.60  

In addition to his spiritual and employment goals, Edgar is focused on his commitment to 

his family and supporting them in the future. Throughout his incarceration, Edgar has maintained 

 
59 A copy of the certificates from United Christian Bible Institute are attached as Exhibit 12. 
60 Job Offer Letter Attached as Exhibit 9.  
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weekly phone calls with his parents and sister, and monthly phone calls with his brother. Prior to 

the COVID-19 pandemic, his family visited him once a month, and they will continue to visit as 

soon as it is safe to do so. Edgar spends a lot of time thinking about his family and often writes 

them letters when he does so. His parents have stood by him through everything and loved him 

unconditionally. They are prepared to support him in any way necessary upon his release and 

also plan to move to Mexico upon Edgar’s release. Edgar looks forward to having the 

opportunity to live close to them and support them as they get older. These close family 

relationships will provide Edgar with the support he needs to successfully re-enter society. 

Officials in the protection department of the Mexican consulate have met with Edgar in the past, 

and have committed to assisting his return to Mexico, if he is granted clemency.61
 

VII. Conclusion 

Edgar Naranjo did not kill or intend to kill anyone when he and fourteen-year old Johnny 

Salazar pushed their way into the home of Juan and Juana Balbontin in October 2002.  He 

accepts full responsibility for his actions on that day and the terror that he caused the Balbontins 

and feels deeply, morally responsible for bringing Johnny with him and setting in motion the 

events that would lead to Johnny’s death. But Edgar could not have foreseen the reckless actions 

of Officer Balbontin. Edgar and Johnny thought they were going to rob an older man, who Edgar 

was familiar with from the flea market, of bottles of cologne. Edgar and Johnny took precautions 

to prevent violence by bringing only an unloaded BB gun with them. Their purpose was simply 

to intimidate the Balbontins into giving them the cologne – they had no intention for anyone to 

be harmed. They abandoned their crime and fled the scene once the Balbontins gave resistance. 

They were completely unaware that they were entering a home where a Chicago police officer 

 
61 Letter of Support from Mexican Consulate, Exhibit 13. 



   
 

 29 

lived or that he would open fire on them as they were fleeing.  For these actions, Edgar was 

guilty of the forcible felony of home invasion.62  He has already served over eighteen-years in 

prison, which is likely more time than he would have served if given a sentence within the 

appropriate range for home invasion.63  

We ask that the Board and the Governor consider how the felony murder law and the 

rules for the use of deadly force against fleeing felons have changed, the many inconsistencies in 

the police department’s version of events and the new facts which have emerged which raise 

questions about whether Officer Balbontin was justified in shooting Johnny Salazar, and the 

jury’s verdict against Officer Balbontin and the City of Chicago in the Salazar family’s wrongful 

death lawsuit.  We ask that this Board and Governor view Edgar’s crimes through the same lens 

that society is now viewing police-involved shootings in this period of racial reckoning and in 

the aftermath of the killing of Laquan McDonald, George Floyd, Breanna Taylor, and most 

recently Adam Toledo.  Viewing Edgar’s crime in this current context, we submit that Edgar’s 

sentence does not match his culpability. 

Edgar has already been over-punished for his participation in the home invasion; his 

eighteen-plus years served is more than the amount of time he likely would have received for the 

home invasion.  Edgar has changed his life during his incarceration and rehabilitated himself. He 

has deeply reconnected to his Christian faith, he no longer uses drugs, and he has a large support 

network of family and friends who have agreed to welcome him back with open arms and to 

 
62Home invasion is a Class X felony under Illinois law and a conviction carries with it a prison sentence of between 
six and thirty years.  Those convicted of a Class X felony are eligible for parole after serving 85% of their sentences.    
63 Because Edgar did not have an extensive criminal background, did not carry or discharge a firearm or injure 
anyone during the home invasion, it is unlikely he would have been sentenced to the maximum thirty-year sentence 
for home invasion. He has already served more than the amount of time he would have received if sentenced to 20 
years at 85%. 
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assist him with his emotional and financial needs.  Commuting Edgar’s sentence to time served 

would allow Edgar to get a fresh start, not on the streets of Chicago, but in his home country of 

Mexico where a job and family await and where he has spent time before as an adult. Even the 

Mexican Consulate, which has assisted Edgar and his family since he was arrested, has agreed to 

continue to work with Edgar until he is safely resettled in Mexico. 64 

Edgar’s forty-year sentence does not fit Edgar’s crime.  He has exhausted all of his legal 

options to obtain a new sentence through the courts.   For all the reasons outlined in this petition, 

we respectfully ask that the Board temper justice with mercy and tailor Edgar’s sentence to more 

suitably fit his crime.  We ask that the Board recommend that his sentence be commuted and that 

the Governor commute Edgar Naranjo’s sentence to time-served. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

        
       Steven A. Drizin 

Counsel of Record 
Megan Grenville, Law Student 
Marissa Jackson, Law Student 
Alix Johnson, Law Student 
Center on Wrongful Convictions of Youth 
Northwestern University Legal Clinic 
375 East Chicago Avenue 
Chicago, IL 60611 
(312) 503-3028 
Counsel for Petitioner 

  

 
64See Letter of Support from the Mexican Consulate, attached as Exhibit 13. 



   
 

 31 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

 
1. Alison Flowers & Sarah Macaraeg, Charged with Murder, but they Didn’t Kill 

Anyone—Police Did (Aug. 18, 2016). 
2. Chicago Police Report dated May 21, 1998 
3. Criminal History: Accurint Search Result  
4. Criminal History: Cook County Clerk’s Office 
5. Criminal History: Chicago Police Department 
6. Nevala, Amy E., Shooting By Officer Justified, Police Say; Cops Believe Body May Be 

Intruders, Chicago Tribune (Oct. 6, 2002). 
7. Suspect Shot at Cop’s Home Denied Bail, Chicago Tribune (Oct. 7, 2002). 
8. Balbontin, Rafael Deposition in Salazar Civil Suit 
9. Job Offer Letter (translated and original) from Gustavo Hernandez Ruiz 

10. Edgar Naranjo College Transcripts and Certificates 
11. IDOC Inmate Disciplinary Card through May 15, 2020 
12. Certificates from United Christian Bible Institute 
13. Letter of Support from the Mexican Consulate 
14. Chicago Police Reports Relating to this Offense 
15. Letter of Support from Jorge Montes 
16. Letter of Support (translated and original) from Zenaido and Celia Naranjo (parents) 
17. Letter of Support from Yuri Martinez (sister) 
18. Letter of Support from Guillermo and Elisa Sanchez (family friends) 
19. Edgar Naranjo Re-Entry Plan 
 

 



 
 
 

Exhibit 1 
  



Latest issue
The Daily Reader, Early Warnings, and Food & Drink e-mails Mobile

Log in / Create Account

BEST OF CHICAGO MAYA DUKMASOVA CANNABIS PODCASTS ARTICLES STORE BOOK CLUB DONATE

Search chicagoreader.com  GO

August 18, 2016NEWS & POLITICS | FEATURE

Charged with murder, but they
didn’t kill anyone—police did 

Sign up for our newsletters Subscribe

Please consider donating. Support the Reader



O

Tevin Louis, left, was charged with felony murder after police killed his best friend
and alleged accomplice Marquise Sampson, right.

COURTESY WINTHER POLK

Please consider donating. Support the Reader



Please consider donating. Support the Reader



From left: Sampson, Louis, and Louis’s younger siblings, Kevin and Olivia, at Kevin’s high school graduation

COURTESY WINTHER POLK

Please consider donating. Support the Reader



Please consider donating. Support the Reader



Please consider donating. Support the Reader



Please consider donating. Support the Reader



Timothy Jones’s prom photo with godbrother Amari Hatch

COURTESY CARMEN HATCH

Please consider donating. Support the Reader



Please consider donating. Support the Reader



Tristan Scaggs with his godsister Maria Mitchell; Scaggs’s aunt Shirley Carter

COURTESY SHIRLEY CARTER; SUNSHINE TUCKER

Please consider donating. Support the Reader



Please consider donating. Support the Reader



REPRINTS

v

Support Independent Chicago Journalism: Join the Reader Revolution

We speak Chicago to Chicagoans, but we couldn’t do it without your help. Every dollar you give helps us continue to explore and report on the diverse
happenings of our city. Our reporters scour Chicago in search of what’s new, what’s now, and what’s next. Stay connected to our city’s pulse by joining the
Reader Revolution.

Are you in?

  Reader Revolutionary $35/month       Rabble Rouser $25/month       Reader Radical $15/month    

  Reader Rebel  $5/month    

Not ready to commit? Send us what you can!

TweetLike 408

Please consider donating. Support the Reader



 
 
 

Exhibit 2 
  





 
 
 

Exhibit 3 
 
  



12/14/2020 Comprehensive Report

https://secure.accurint.com/app/bps/report 1/8

 
Important:   The Public Records and commercially available data sources used on reports have errors.  Data is sometimes entered poorly, processed
incorrectly and is generally not free from defect.  This system should not be relied upon as definitively accurate.  Before relying on any data this system
supplies, it should be independently verified.  For Secretary of State documents, the following data is for information purposes only and is not an official
record.  Certified copies may be obtained from that individual state's Department of State.  The criminal record data in this product or service may include
records that have been expunged, sealed, or otherwise have become inaccessible to the public since the date on which the data was last updated or
collected. 

Accurint does not constitute a "consumer report" as that term is defined in the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 USC 1681 et seq. (FCRA). Accordingly,
Accurint may not be used in whole or in part as a factor in determining eligibility for credit, insurance, employment or another permissible purpose under
the FCRA. 

Your DPPA Permissible Use :  Civil, Criminal, Administrative, or Arbitral Proceedings 
Your GLBA Permissible Use :  No Permissible Purpose 
Your DMF Permissible Use :  No Permissible Purpose 

Comprehensive Report
Date: 12/14/20
 

Report Legend: 
 - Shared Address 
 - Deceased 
 - Probable Current Address

 

Subject Information 
(Best Information for Subject) 
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Date of Birth: 9/1976 
Age: 44 
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EDGAR NARANJO 
      Age: 44   SSN:  357-80-xxxx 
EDGAR NARANJO 
      Age: 43   SSN:  357-80-xxxx

Indicators 
  
Bankruptcy: No 
Property: No 
Corporate Affiliations: No

  

Address Summary:    View All Address Variation Sources 
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              [None Found] 
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              Name Associated with Address: 
                     EDGAR NARANJO  
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                     CELIA M NARANJO  
                     EDGAR NARANJO  
                     773-277-8352  
                     

              Property Ownership Information for this Address 
                     Property: 
                             Parcel Number - 16-26-314-024-0000 
                            Owner Name: LAURA GUTIERREZ RAMOS  LexID: 232573419384 
                             Property Address: - 2700 S MILLARD AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535, COOK COUNTY 
                             Sale Date - 01/05/2017 
                             Sale Price - $150,000 
                             Subdivision Name - BONNEYS LAWNDALE 
                             Total Market Value - $37,280 
                             Assessed Value - $3,728 
                             Land Size - 3,351 Square Feet 
                             Year Built - 1911 
                            Seller Name: REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC 
                             Data Source - A 

Bankruptcies:

       [None Found]

Liens and Judgments:

        Filing Type:  JUDGMENT 
        Filing Date:   5/15/2000 
        State:  IL 
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        Original Filing Date: 
        Amount: $2,543 
        Debtor Name: EDGAR NARANJO 
        Debtor LexID: 001817038172 
        Debtor SSN: 357-80-xxxx 
        Debtor Address: 2700 S MILLARD AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535 
        Creditor: NOE PEREZ

Phones Plus: 
       [None Found]

People at Work: 
Maximum 50 People at Work records returned

       [None Found]

Possible Properties Owned by Subject: 
       [None Found]

Watercraft: 
       [None Found]

FAA Aircrafts: 
       [None Found]

Possible Criminal Records: 
       Illinois Court: 
              Name: EDGAR NARANJO 
              LexID: 001817038172 
              SSN: 357-80-xxxx 
              Address: 4822 S KARLOV AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60632-4124 
              State of Origin: Illinois 
              County of Origin: COOK 
              DOB: 09/xx/1976 
              Sex: Male 
              Case Number: 2002CR2773001 

              Offenses: 
                     Offense #1 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 2002CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FEL 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/9-1(A)(3) 
                     Court Disposition: CREDIT DEFENDANT FOR TIME SERV 
                     Court Disposition Date: 03/19/2004 
                     Court Level/Degree: FELONY M

                     Offense #2 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 2002CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/19-3 
                     Court Disposition: DEF SENTENCED ILLINOIS DOC 
                     Court Disposition Date: 02/24/2004 
                     Court Level/Degree: FELONY FIRST DEGREE 

                     Sentence Date: 
                     Sentence 
                            Jail: Min: 10 Years 
                            Probation:  
                            Suspended Time:  

                     Offense #3 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 2002CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FEL 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/9-1(A)(3) 
                     Court Disposition: DEF SENTENCED ILLINOIS DOC 
                     Court Disposition Date: 02/24/2004 
                     Court Level/Degree: FELONY M

                     Sentence Date: 
                     Sentence 
                            Jail: Min: 40 Years 
                            Probation:  
                            Suspended Time:  
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              Court Activity: 
                [NONE FOUND] 

       Illinois Court: 
              Name: EDGAR NARANJO 
              LexID: 001817038172 
              SSN: 357-80-xxxx 
              Address: 4822 S KARLOV AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60632-4124 
              State of Origin: Illinois 
              County of Origin: COOK 
              DOB: 09/xx/1976 
              Case Number: 02CR2773001 

              Offenses: 
                     Offense #1 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 02CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: ARMED ROBBERY 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/18-2(A) 
                     Court Disposition: FINDING OF GUILTY 
                     Court Disposition Date: 01/20/2004 

                     Offense #2 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 02CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: HOME INVASION/ARMED/FORCE 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/12-11(A)(1) 
                     Court Disposition: FINDING OF GUILTY 
                     Court Disposition Date: 01/20/2004 

                     Offense #3 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 02CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FEL 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/9-1(A)(3) 
                     Court Disposition: FINDING OF GUILTY 
                     Court Disposition Date: 01/20/2004 

                     Offense #4 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 02CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/19-3 
                     Court Disposition: FINDING OF GUILTY 
                     Court Disposition Date: 01/20/2004 

                     Offense #5 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 02CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: MURDER/INTENT TO KILL/INJ 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/9-1(A)(1) 
                     Court Disposition: FINDING OF NOT GUILTY 
                     Court Disposition Date: 01/20/2004 

                     Offense #6 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 02CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/19-3 
                     Court Disposition: FINDING OF NOT GUILTY 
                     Court Disposition Date: 01/20/2004 

                     Offense #7 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 02CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: ARMED ROBBERY 
                     Court Statute: 720-5/18-2(A) 
                     Court Disposition: LESSER INCLUDED OFFENSE MERGED 
                     Court Disposition Date: 02/24/2004 

                     Offense #8 
                     Arrest Date: 10/04/2002 
                     Court Case Number: 02CR2773001 
                     Court Offense: HOME INVASION/ARMED/FORCE 
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                     Court Statute: 720-5/12-11(A)(1) 
                     Court Disposition: LESSER INCLUDED OFFENSE MERGED 
                     Court Disposition Date: 02/24/2004 

              Court Activity: 
                [NONE FOUND] 

       Illinois Court: 
              Name: EDGAR NARANJO 
              LexID: 001817038172 
              SSN: 357-80-xxxx 
              State of Origin: Illinois 
              Party Status: COMPLIANT 
              DOB: 09/xx/1976 
              Sex: Male 
              Height: 5' 05" 
              Weight: 176 

              Offenses: 
                     Offense #1 
                     Court Offense: MURDER 
                     Court Level/Degree: FELONY 

              Court Activity: 
                [NONE FOUND] 

       Illinois Department of Corrections: 
              Name: EDGAR NARANJO 
              LexID: 001817038172 
              SSN: 357-80-xxxx 
              State of Origin: Illinois 
              DOC Number: R28771 
              DOB: 09/xx/1976 
              Race: HISPANIC 
              Sex: Male 
              Case Type Description: Department Of Correction 

              Offenses: 
                     Convicted County: PROJECTED MSR DATE: 20420927;C 
                     Offense: MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FELONY       Sentence Date: 03/19/2004       
              Parole/Probations: 
                     [None Found] 

              Prison Inmate Records: 
                     Latest Admission Date: 03/26/2004       Scheduled Release Date: 09/27/2045       
                     Custody Type: ADMISSION TYPE: DIRECT FR       
                     Prison Location: DIXON       
Unknown

Date

       Illinois Court: 
              Name: EDGAR NARANJO 
              LexID: 001817038172 
              SSN: 357-80-xxxx 
              State of Origin: Illinois 
              DOB: 09/xx/1976 
              Sex: Male 
              Height: 5' 05" 
              Weight: 176 

              Offenses: 
                     Offense #1 
                     Court Offense: MURDER 
                     Court Disposition: CONVICTED 

              Court Activity: 
                [NONE FOUND] 

Sexual Offenses: 
       [None Found]

Professional License(s): 
       [None Found]

Voter Registration:  
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       [None Found]

Concealed Weapons Permit:  
       [None Found]

DEA Controlled Substances: 
       [None Found]

Possible Associates:

       YURI NARANJO  LexID: 001817458424 DOB: 10/xx/1981  
       357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              Names Associated with Associate: 
              YURI MARTINEZ  LexID: 001817458424 DOB: 10/1981 
              357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              YURY NARANJO  LexID: 001817458424 
              357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              Previous And Non-Verified Address(es): 
              4445 S WASHTENAW AVE UNIT 1, CHICAGO, IL 60632-1902, COOK COUNTY (Jan 2006 - Jul 2020) 
              4451 S WASHTENAW AVE APT, CHICAGO, IL 60632-1902, COOK COUNTY (Jun 1999 - Jun 2019) 
              2244 W COULTER ST FL 2, CHICAGO, IL 60608-4932, COOK COUNTY (Feb 2012 - Jun 2016) 
              2326 W 23RD PL APT, CHICAGO, IL 60608-3804, COOK COUNTY (Nov 2011 - Feb 2012) 
              3805 S 58TH CT, CICERO, IL 60804-4212, COOK COUNTY ( 2005 - Feb 2008) 
              2700 S MILLARD AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535, COOK COUNTY (Sep 2000 - Dec 2006) 
              2000 W 22ND PL, CHICAGO, IL 60608-4114, COOK COUNTY (Oct 2004 - Sep 2006) 
              2808 SHERIDAN APT, EVANSTON, IL 60201, COOK COUNTY (Apr 2001) 
              2808 SHERIDAN APT, EVANSTON, IL 60201, COOK COUNTY (Apr 2001)

Possible Relative Summary:  (Click on name to link to more details within this report - No Charge)

     >  CELIA M NARANJO , Age 67  
         >>  CELIA M HERNANDEZ  - (AKA), Age 67 
         >>  YURI NARANJO , Age 39  
             >>>  YURI MARTINEZ  - (AKA), Age 39 
             >>>  YURY NARANJO  - (AKA) 
     >  ZENAIDO NARANJO , Age 69  
         >>  ZENAIDO NARANJO  - (AKA), Age 69 
         >>  ZENANDO NARANJO  - (AKA), Age 69 
         >>  ZENGIDO NARANJO  - (AKA), Age 69 
         >>  ZENAIDO CELIA NARANJO  - (AKA), Age 69 
         >>  ZENALDO CELIA NARANJO  - (AKA), Age 69 
         >>  ZENAIDO NAKANJO  - (AKA), Age 69 
         >>  ZENAIDO NARANIO  - (AKA), Age 69 
         >>  ZENAIDO NORANGO  - (AKA), Age 69 
         >>  ZENAIDO NORANJO  - (AKA), Age 69 
     >  ALEJANDRO NARANJO , Age 45  
         >>  ALEJANVRO NARANJO  - (AKA), Age 45 
         >>  CLAUDIA PINEDA , Age 49  
             >>>  CLAUDIA NARANJO  - (AKA), Age 49

Possible Relatives:

       CELIA M NARANJO  LexID: 001815399707 DOB: 8/xx/1953  
              351-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              Names Associated with Relative: 
              CELIA M HERNANDEZ  LexID: 001815399707 DOB: 8/xx/1953 
                     351-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              Previous And Non-Verified Address(es): 
              2108 W 23RD ST BSMT, CHICAGO, IL 60608-4002, COOK COUNTY (Oct 2015 - May 2016) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            ZENAIDO NARANJO  
                            MARIA D ARZATE  
              2700 S MILLARD AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535, COOK COUNTY (Aug 1989 - Feb 2015) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            CELIA M NARANJO  
                            EDGAR NARANJO  
                            312-277-8352  

              2000 W 22ND PL 2E, CHICAGO, IL 60608-4114, COOK COUNTY (Oct 1996 - Feb 2015) 
                            773-277-8352  

              2704 S MILLARD AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535, COOK COUNTY (Aug 1989 - Feb 2015) 
                            773-277-8352  

              2748 S TRUMBULL AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4626, COOK COUNTY (Jul 1989) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
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                            DIEGO C ARECHAR  
                            MARIA D ARECHAR  
                            GUADALUPE ARECHAR  
                            PATRICIA ARECHAR  
                            DIANA C ARECHAR  

              Possible Relative: 
              YURI NARANJO  LexID: 001817458424 DOB: 10/xx/1981  
                     357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
                     Names Associated with Relative: 
                     YURI MARTINEZ  LexID: 001817458424 DOB: 10/1981 
                            357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
                     YURY NARANJO  LexID: 001817458424 
                            357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
                     Previous And Non-Verified Address(es): 
                     4445 S WASHTENAW AVE UNIT 1, CHICAGO, IL 60632-1902, COOK COUNTY (Jan 2006 - Jul 2020) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   JUAN R VAZQUEZ  
                                   AURELIO G LOPEZ  
                     4451 S WASHTENAW AVE APT, CHICAGO, IL 60632-1902, COOK COUNTY (Jun 1999 - Jun 2019) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   ROBERTO FONSECA  
                                   GUSTAVO HERNANDEZ  
                                   EDWIN FUERTE  
                     2244 W COULTER ST FL 2, CHICAGO, IL 60608-4932, COOK COUNTY (Feb 2012 - Jun 2016) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   HECTOR ABREGO  
                                   VANESSA JIMENEZ  
                                   FERNANDO CASCO  
                     2326 W 23RD PL APT, CHICAGO, IL 60608-3804, COOK COUNTY (Nov 2011 - Feb 2012) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   DAMARIS PACHECO  
                                   ALEX RODRIGUEZ  
                                   DALERIS RODRIGUEZ  
                                   PRISILA MATIAS  
                                   YESENIA AGUILAR  
                     3805 S 58TH CT, CICERO, IL 60804-4212, COOK COUNTY ( 2005 - Feb 2008) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   ADRIANA OROZCO  
                                   VICTOR A PADILLA  
                                   773-517-4887  

                     2700 S MILLARD AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535, COOK COUNTY (Sep 2000 - Dec 2006) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   CELIA M NARANJO  
                                   EDGAR NARANJO  
                                   773-277-8352  

                     2000 W 22ND PL, CHICAGO, IL 60608-4114, COOK COUNTY (Oct 2004 - Sep 2006) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   ZENAIDO NARANJO  
                     2808 SHERIDAN APT, EVANSTON, IL 60201, COOK COUNTY (Apr 2001) 
                     2808 SHERIDAN APT, EVANSTON, IL 60201, COOK COUNTY (Apr 2001) 
                                   773-277-8352  

       ZENAIDO NARANJO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950  
              327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              Names Associated with Relative: 
              ZENAIDO NARANJO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     347-70-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1982  and  12/31/1983 
              ZENANDO NARANJO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              ZENGIDO NARANJO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              ZENAIDO CELIA NARANJO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              ZENALDO CELIA NARANJO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              ZENAIDO NAKANJO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              ZENAIDO NARANIO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              ZENAIDO NORANGO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              ZENAIDO NORANJO  LexID: 001816402426 DOB: 12/xx/1950 
                     327-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              Previous And Non-Verified Address(es): 



12/14/2020 Comprehensive Report

https://secure.accurint.com/app/bps/report 7/8

              2108 W 23RD ST, CHICAGO, IL 60608-4002, COOK COUNTY (Oct 2015 - Jun 2020) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            GABRIEL A CAMARENA  
                            EMMA CARLOS  
                            ADABEL CARLOS  
                            CESAR CARLOS  
              4445 S WASHTENAW AVE APT, CHICAGO, IL 60632-1902, COOK COUNTY (Mar 2017 - Feb 2020) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            WANDA I ECHEVARRIA  
                            YURI NARANJO  
                            NERIZ ALEXANDER MARTINEZ LOPEZ  
              2244 S COULTER, CHICAGO, IL 60608, COOK COUNTY (Jul 2015) 
              2700 S MILLARD AVE APT 1F, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535, COOK COUNTY (Aug 1989 - Apr 2015) 
                            773-277-8352  

              2000 W 22ND PL 2E, CHICAGO, IL 60608-4114, COOK COUNTY (Oct 1996 - Feb 2015) 
                            773-376-0840  

              2748 S TRUMBULL AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4626, COOK COUNTY (May 1989 - Jan 2003) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            DIEGO C ARECHAR  
                            MARIA D ARECHAR  
                            GUADALUPE ARECHAR  
                            PATRICIA ARECHAR  
                            DIANA C ARECHAR  
                            773-277-8352  

              2720 S TRUMBULL AVE APT, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4626, COOK COUNTY (Feb 1986) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            ROSARIO CORDOVA  
                            PEDRO A CORDOVA  
                            JORGE A HERNANDEZ  
              2840 S PULASKI RD, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4455, COOK COUNTY (Feb 1986) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            ELIASIM MILLAN  
                            LIBORIA HERNANDEZ MILLAN  
                            DELIA MILLAN  
                            RAUL MILLAN  

       ALEJANDRO NARANJO  LexID: 001817278393 DOB: 8/xx/1975  
              357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              Names Associated with Relative: 
              ALEJANVRO NARANJO  LexID: 001817278393 DOB: 8/xx/1975 
                     357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
              Previous And Non-Verified Address(es): 
              2850 S SPRINGFIELD AVE APT, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4421, COOK COUNTY (Feb 2013 - Sep 2020) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            CRUZ L RADA  
                            ALEJANDRO NARANJO  
                            ADELA S RADA  
                            MARITZA BERTIZ  
              6948 S KEDVALE AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60629-5751, COOK COUNTY ( 2005 - May 2007) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            CLAUDIA PINEDA  
                            773-735-1522  

              2413 S PULASKI RD APT 1, CHICAGO, IL 60623-3719, COOK COUNTY (May 2004 - Nov 2006) 
                     Current Residents at Address: 
                            RAUDEL L CASTANEDA 
              2700 S MILLARD AVE FL 1, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535, COOK COUNTY (Jun 1995 - Jan 2003) 
                            773-277-8352  

              Possible Relative: 
              CLAUDIA PINEDA  LexID: 001980387069 DOB: 11/xx/1971  
                     340-76-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1986  and  12/31/1987 
                     Names Associated with Relative: 
                     CLAUDIA NARANJO  LexID: 001980387069 DOB: 11/xx/1971 
                            340-76-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1986  and  12/31/1987 
                     Previous And Non-Verified Address(es): 
                     6948 S KEDVALE AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60629-5751, COOK COUNTY ( 2005 - Nov 2019) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   CLAUDIA PINEDA  
                                   773-735-1522  
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                     3019 S CENTRAL PARK AVE APT 2ND, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4649, COOK COUNTY (Jan 1992 - Jun 2007) 
                                   773-277-4340  

                     2413 S PULASKI RD APT, CHICAGO, IL 60623-3719, COOK COUNTY (Oct 2006) 
                            Current Residents at Address: 
                                   RAUDEL L CASTANEDA  
                                   LINCOLN COSTELLO  
                                   DIANE JOHN  
                     2749 W POPE JOHN PAUL II DR, CHICAGO, IL 60632-1255, COOK COUNTY (Sep 1996 - Mar 2006) 
                     2739 W POPE JOHN PAUL II DR APT 3, CHICAGO, IL 60632-1255, COOK COUNTY (Oct 1995 - Jan 2003) 
                     NONE APT, CHICAGO, IL 60623, COOK COUNTY

Neighbors:

       Neighborhood: 
              2700 S MILLARD AVE, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4535, COOK COUNTY (Aug 1995 - Oct 2020) 
                     Residents: 
                            CELIA M NARANJO  DOB: 8/xx/1953 
                                   351-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
                            EDGAR NARANJO  DOB: 9/1976 
                                   357-80-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
                            773-277-8352  

                     Address(es): 
                     2705 S MILLARD AVE APT, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4536, COOK COUNTY (Apr 2000 - Oct 2020) 
                                   BENITO ARROYO  LexID: 000085548143 DOB: 4/xx/1956  
                                          543-25-xxxx issued in Oregon  between  1/1/1988  and  12/31/1989 
                                                        SSN belongs to a person reported as deceased. 
                     2705 S MILLARD AVE APT 1, CHICAGO, IL 60623-4536, COOK COUNTY (Jul 1992 - Oct 2020) 
                                   JAIME RODRIGUEZ  LexID: 002180094570 DOB: 7/xx/1959  
                                          352-62-xxxx issued in Illinois  between  1/1/1976  and  12/31/1977

Source Information: 
        All Sources 9  Source Document(s)
       Liens and Judgments 1  Source Document(s)
       Historical Person Locator 2  Source Document(s)
       Person Locator 2 1  Source Document(s)
       Criminal 5  Source Document(s)
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People of the State of Illinois vs. EDGAR NARANJO §
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Location: Criminal Division
Judicial Officer: Conversion, Conversion

Filed on: 11/08/2002
Appellate Number: AC# 1-19-1697

07-1254
04-1137

Central Booking
Number/Document Control 

Number:

015258028

FBI Number: 078811TA4
IR Number: 1037089

Record Division Number: HH691346
Related Case Number: 02111920301

SID/IBI: 032387760

CASE INFORMATION

Offense Statute Deg Date
Jurisdiction: Chicago Police Department
001. MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FEL 720-5/9-1(A)

(3)
FM 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 001
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

002. MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FEL 720-5/9-1(A)
(3)

FM 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 002
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

003. MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FEL 720-5/9-1(A)
(3)

FM 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 003
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

004. MURDER/INTENT TO KILL/INJ 
 (Attempt) 

720-5/9-1(A)
(1)

FM 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 004
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

005. HOME INVASION/ARMED/FORCE 720-5/12-11(A)
(1)

FX 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 005
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

006. HOME INVASION/ARMED/FORCE 720-5/12-11(A)
(1)

FX 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 006
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

007. HOME INVASION/ARMED/FORCE 720-5/12-11(A)
(1)

FX 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 007
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

008. HOME INVASION/ARMED/FORCE 720-5/12-11(A)
(1)

FX 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 008
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

009. RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY 720-5/19-3 F1 01/01/1900
DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 009

Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department
010. RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY 720-5/19-3 F1 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 010
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

011. ARMED ROBBERY  (Attempt) 720-5/18-2(A) FX 01/01/1900
DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 011

Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department
012. ARMED ROBBERY  (Attempt) 720-5/18-2(A) FX 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 012
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

Case Type: Felony Indictment

Case
Status: 08/09/2019 Appeal

Case Flags: Appeal Filed

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02CR2773001
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013. ARMED ROBBERY  (Attempt) 720-5/18-2(A) FX 01/01/1900
DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 013

Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department
014. ARMED ROBBERY  (Attempt) 720-5/18-2(A) FX 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 014
Arrest: 10/04/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

Related Cases
02111920301   (Indictment)

DATE CASE ASSIGNMENT

Current Case Assignment
Case Number 02CR2773001
Court Criminal Division
Date Assigned 11/08/2002
Judicial Officer Conversion, Conversion

PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys
Defendant NARANJO, EDGAR PENA, ROGELIO

Retained
708-749-9482(W)

Plaintiff OF ILLINOIS, PEOPLE OF THE STATE

DATE EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT INDEX

10/06/2002 Bond Setting 
Originating Case Number02111920301

Judicial Order - No Bail

11/08/2002 Indictment/Information-Clerks Office-Presiding Judge
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 11/18/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: 101 
DESC: 02CR2773001 ID# CR100830568

11/18/2002 Continued to (9:00 AM) 
Events: 11/08/2002 Indictment/Information-Clerks Office-Presiding Judge
ROOM: 101 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 11/18/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

11/18/2002 Continued to (9:00 AM) 
Events: 11/18/2002 Case Assigned
ROOM: 301 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 11/18/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

11/18/2002 Case Assigned (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul ) 
ROOM: 101 
JDGE: 1688
CDATE: 11/18/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: 301

11/18/2002 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Wood, William S ) 
ROOM: 101 
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JDGE: 0564

11/18/2002 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294

11/18/2002 Appearance Filed (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294

11/18/2002 Defendant Arraigned (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294

11/18/2002 Plea Of Not Guilty (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294

11/18/2002 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294
CDATE: 12/16/2002
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/16/2002 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 11/18/2002 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 12/16/2002
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/16/2002 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294

12/16/2002 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294
CDATE: 02/06/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

02/06/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 12/16/2002 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 02/06/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

02/06/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294

02/06/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294
CDATE: 03/19/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

03/19/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 02/06/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 03/19/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

03/19/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294
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03/19/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294
CDATE: 04/30/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

04/30/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 03/19/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 04/30/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

04/30/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294

04/30/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Reyna, Ralph ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0294
CDATE: 06/05/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

06/05/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 04/30/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 06/05/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

06/05/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Moran, John J ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 1560

06/05/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Moran, John J ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 1560
CDATE: 06/26/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

06/26/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 06/05/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 06/26/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

06/26/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Wood, William S )
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0564

06/26/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Wood, William S ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 0564
CDATE: 07/29/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

07/29/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 06/26/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 07/29/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

07/29/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Ford, Nicholas R )
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 1756

07/29/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Ford, Nicholas R ) 
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ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 1756
CDATE: 08/26/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

08/26/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 07/29/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 08/26/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

08/26/2003 Transferred (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M ) 
ROOM: 301 
JDGE: 1746
CDATE: 08/27/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 101

08/27/2003 Transferred (9:30 AM) 
Events: 08/26/2003 Transferred
ROOM: 101 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 08/27/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

08/27/2003 Continued to (9:00 AM) 
Events: 08/27/2003 Case Assigned
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 08/27/2003
C: 09:00 AM - 1

08/27/2003 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul ) 
ROOM: 101 
JDGE: 1688

08/27/2003 Case Assigned (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul ) 
ROOM: 101 
JDGE: 1688
CDATE: 08/27/2003
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: 203

08/27/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

08/27/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 09/24/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

09/24/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 08/27/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 09/24/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

09/24/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

09/24/2003 Discovery Answer Filed (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
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F
MODB: 1

09/24/2003 Witnesses Ordered To Appear (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

09/24/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 10/27/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

10/27/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 09/24/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 10/27/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

10/27/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

10/27/2003 Change Priority Status (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: R

10/27/2003 Motion To Suppress - Filed (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
D
MODB: 2

10/27/2003 Witnesses Ordered To Appear (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

10/27/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 12/17/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

10/29/2003 Change Priority Status (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: R

10/29/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

10/29/2003 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 12/17/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/17/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 10/27/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 12/17/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2
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12/17/2003 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 10/29/2003 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 12/17/2003
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/17/2003 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

12/17/2003 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

12/17/2003 Trial Commenced And Continued (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 01/05/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

01/05/2004 Continued to (9:30 AM) 
Events: 12/17/2003 Trial Commenced And Continued
CDATE: 01/05/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

01/05/2004 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

01/05/2004 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

01/05/2004 Witnesses Ordered To Appear (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

01/05/2004 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 01/15/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

01/15/2004 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 01/05/2004 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 01/15/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

01/15/2004 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

01/15/2004 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

01/15/2004 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 01/20/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2
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01/20/2004 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 01/15/2004 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 01/20/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

01/20/2004 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

01/20/2004 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

01/20/2004 Finding Of Guilty (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C001

01/20/2004 Finding Of Guilty (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C007

01/20/2004 Finding Of Guilty (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C009

01/20/2004 Finding Of Guilty (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C011

01/20/2004 Finding Of Not Guilty (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C004

01/20/2004 Finding Of Not Guilty (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C010

01/20/2004 Bail Revoked (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

01/20/2004 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 02/24/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

01/20/2004 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)
    001.  MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FEL
              Finding of Guilty
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 001

01/20/2004 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)
    007.  HOME INVASION/ARMED/FORCE
              Finding of Guilty
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                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 007

01/20/2004 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)
    009.  RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY
              Finding of Guilty
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 009

01/20/2004 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)
    011.  ARMED ROBBERY (Attempt)
              Finding of Guilty
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 011

01/20/2004 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)
    004.  MURDER/INTENT TO KILL/INJ (Attempt)
              Finding of Not Guilty
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 004

01/20/2004 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)
    010.  RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY
              Finding of Not Guilty
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 010

02/24/2004 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 01/20/2004 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 02/24/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

02/24/2004 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

02/24/2004 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

02/24/2004 Motion Defendant - New Trial - Filed (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
D
MODB: 2

02/24/2004 Defendant Sentenced Illinois Department Of Corrections (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C001
MIN TERM: 40Y

02/24/2004 Lesser Included Offense Merge (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C007
DESC: MERGE WITH CT 1 CT 11 MERGE W/ CT 9

02/24/2004 Defendant Sentenced Illinois Department Of Corrections (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
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REF: C009
MIN TERM: 10Y

02/24/2004 Lesser Included Offense Merge (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: C011

02/24/2004 Sentence To Run Consecutive (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
DESC: EACH TO BE SERVED CONSECUTIVE

02/24/2004 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 03/19/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

02/24/2004 Recall/Execute Sent To Police Agency
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

02/24/2004 Amended Disposition (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)  Reason:  Conversion 
    007.  HOME INVASION/ARMED/FORCE
              Lesser Included Offense Merged
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 007

02/24/2004 Amended Disposition (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)  Reason:  Conversion 
    011.  ARMED ROBBERY (Attempt)
              Lesser Included Offense Merged
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 011

02/24/2004 Sentence (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)
    001.  MURDER/OTHER FORCIBLE FEL
              IDOC

IL Criminal
Charge Disposition Type

Type: Guilty Plea
Confinement/Juvenile Detention

Status: Consecutive
Type: Illinois Department of Corrections
Report Date: 02/24/2004
Term: 40 Years
Comment: DEF SENTENCED ILLINOIS DOC

Converted Disposition:
Description: SENTENCE TO RUN CONSECUTIVE 
Disp Date: 02/24/2004
EACH TO BE SERVED CONSECUTIVE

02/24/2004 Sentence (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P)
    009.  RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY
              IDOC

IL Criminal
Charge Disposition Type

Type: Guilty Plea
Confinement/Juvenile Detention

Status: Consecutive
Type: Illinois Department of Corrections
Report Date: 02/24/2004
Term: 10 Years
Comment: DEF SENTENCED ILLINOIS DOC

Converted Disposition:
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Description: SENTENCE TO RUN CONSECUTIVE 
Disp Date: 02/24/2004
EACH TO BE SERVED CONSECUTIVE

03/19/2004 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 02/24/2004 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 03/19/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

03/19/2004 Credit Defendant For Time Served (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

03/19/2004 Illinois State Appellate Defender Appointed (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

03/19/2004 Order Of Court, Stay Of Mittimus (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 03/26/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

03/19/2004 Change Priority Status (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
REF: M

03/19/2004 Notice Of Appeal Filed, Transferred
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

03/22/2004 Motion To Reduce Sentence - Filed
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
F
MODB: 2

03/22/2004 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 03/25/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

03/23/2004 Special Order
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
DESC: PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS ADTISTIFICANDUM FILED

03/23/2004 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 03/25/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

03/25/2004 Hearing (9:30 AM) 
Events: 03/22/2004 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 03/25/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

03/25/2004 Hearing (9:30 AM) 
Events: 03/23/2004 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
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CDATE: 03/25/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

03/25/2004 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

03/25/2004 Prisoner Data Sheet To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

03/25/2004 Special Order (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
DESC: LV TO W/D MNT ALLOWED MNT RECONSIDER SENTENCE

03/25/2004 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 04/01/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

03/26/2004 Continued to (9:30 AM) 
Events: 03/19/2004 Order Of Court, Stay Of Mittimus
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 03/26/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

04/01/2004 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 03/25/2004 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 04/01/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

04/01/2004 Defendant Not In Court (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

04/01/2004 Motion To Reduce Sentence - Filed (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
D
MODB: 2

04/01/2004 Special Order (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
DESC: OFF CALL 999

04/01/2004 Notice Of Appeal Filed, Transferred
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

04/01/2004 Notice Of Appeal Filed, Transferred
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

04/13/2004 Notice Of Notice Of Appeal Mailed
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

04/13/2004 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 04/16/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2
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ROOM: 405

04/16/2004 Hearing (9:30 AM) 
Events: 04/13/2004 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: 405 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 04/16/2004
C: 09:30 AM - 2

04/16/2004 Private Attorney/Appeal (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul ) 
ROOM: 405 
JDGE: 1688
DESC: RICHARD DVORAK

04/16/2004 Free Report Of Proceedings Denied (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul )
ROOM: 405 
JDGE: 1688

04/16/2004 Memo Of Orders & Notice Of Appeal Picked-Up (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul ) 
ROOM: 405 
JDGE: 1688

04/28/2004 Appellate Court Number Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE
04-1137

05/05/2004 Report Of Proceedings Ordered From Court Reporter
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

09/15/2004 Transcript Proceedings Received/Filed Clerks Office
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

10/12/2004 Report Of Proceedings Prepared
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

10/21/2004 Supplemental Report Of Proceedings Prepared
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

10/27/2004 Supplemental Record Received By Appellate Counsel
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
DESC: STATE APPELLATE DEFENDER

01/14/2005 Transcript Proceedings Received/Filed Clerks Office
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

11/17/2006 Mandate Filed
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 12/05/2006
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 101

12/05/2006 Continued to (9:30 AM) 
Events: 11/17/2006 Mandate Filed
ROOM: 101 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 12/05/2006
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/05/2006 Review Court Affirmance (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul ) 
ROOM: 101 
JDGE: 1688
DESC: IN PART

12/05/2006 Case Assigned (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul ) 
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ROOM: 101 
JDGE: 1688
CDATE: 12/08/2006
C: 10:00 AM - 9
ROOM: 203

12/08/2006 Continued to (10:00 AM) 
Events: 12/05/2006 Case Assigned
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 12/08/2006
C: 10:00 AM - 9

12/08/2006 Continuance By Order Of Court (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 12/11/2006
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/11/2006 Order of Court (9:30 AM) 
Events: 12/08/2006 Continuance By Order Of Court
CDATE: 12/11/2006
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/11/2006 Continuance By Order Of Court (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 12/18/2006
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/14/2006 Corrected Mittimus To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
S

12/14/2006 Mittimus To Issue (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

12/18/2006 Order of Court (9:30 AM) 
Events: 12/11/2006 Continuance By Order Of Court
CDATE: 12/18/2006
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/18/2006 Special Order (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
DESC: ORDER OF 12/14/06 TO STAND

12/20/2006 Special Order
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
DESC: COPY OF CORRECTED MITTIMUS FORWARDED TO STATEVILLE/IDOC

03/07/2007 Special Order
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
DESC: MTN TO FILE POST CONV. PETITION

03/07/2007 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 03/12/2007
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

03/12/2007 Hearing (9:30 AM) 
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Events: 03/07/2007 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 03/12/2007
C: 09:30 AM - 2

03/12/2007 Post-Conviction Petition Allowed (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
F
MODB: 2

03/12/2007 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501
CDATE: 04/13/2007
C: 09:30 AM - 2

04/13/2007 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 03/12/2007 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 04/13/2007
C: 09:30 AM - 2

04/13/2007 Continued to (9:30 AM) 
Events: 05/02/2007 Notice Of Appeal Filed, Transferred
CDATE: 04/13/2007
C: 09:30 AM - 2

04/13/2007 Post-Conviction Petition Denied (Judicial Officer: Toomin, Michael P ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 0501

04/17/2007 Notification Sent To Defendant
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

05/02/2007 Notice Of Appeal Filed, Transferred
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 04/13/2007
C: 09:30 AM - 2

05/08/2007 Notice Of Notice Of Appeal Mailed
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

05/08/2007 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 05/11/2007
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 405

05/10/2007 Transcript Proceedings Received/Filed Clerks Office
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
DESC: ONE VOLUME

05/11/2007 Hearing (9:30 AM) 
Events: 05/08/2007 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: 405 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 05/11/2007
C: 09:30 AM - 2

05/11/2007 Private Attorney/Appeal (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul ) 
ROOM: 405 
JDGE: 1688
DESC: SAM ADAMS

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02CR2773001
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05/11/2007 Free Report Of Proceedings Denied (Judicial Officer: Biebel, Paul )
ROOM: 405 
JDGE: 1688

05/15/2007 Appellate Court Number Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE
07-1254

05/31/2007 Report Of Proceedings Prepared
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
07-1254
DESC: (1)VOL

06/04/2007 Common Law Record Prepared
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

06/04/2007 Common Law Record Received By Appointed Counsel
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
07-1254
DESC: SAM ADAMS (JAY) ONE VOLUME

06/04/2007 Report of Proceedings Received By Appointed Attorney
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
07-1254
DESC: SAM ADAMS (JAY) ONE VOLUME

11/25/2008 Mandate Filed
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 12/09/2008
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 101 
DESC: 07-1254

12/09/2008 Continued to (9:30 AM) 
Events: 11/25/2008 Mandate Filed
ROOM: 101 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 12/09/2008
C: 09:30 AM - 2

12/09/2008 Review Court Affirmance (Judicial Officer: Porter, Dennis J ) 
ROOM: 101 
JDGE: 1512

05/30/2014 Motion Defendant Petition For Transcript, Common Law Record
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
F
MODB: 2

05/30/2014 Notice Of Motion/Filing
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 06/06/2014
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

06/06/2014 Motion (9:30 AM) 
Events: 05/30/2014 Notice Of Motion/Filing
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 06/06/2014
C: 09:30 AM - 2

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02CR2773001
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06/06/2014 Continuance By Order Of Court (Judicial Officer: Slattery-Boyle, Maura )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 1821
CDATE: 06/20/2014
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

06/20/2014 Order of Court (9:30 AM) 
Events: 06/06/2014 Continuance By Order Of Court
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 06/20/2014
C: 09:30 AM - 2

06/20/2014 Motion Defendant Petition For Transcript, Common Law Record (Judicial Officer: Ford, 
Nicholas R ) 

ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 1756
D
MODB: 2

06/30/2014 Notification Sent To Defendant
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

03/25/2019 Motion Defendant Petition For Transcript, Common Law Record
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
F
MODB: 2

03/25/2019 Notice Of Motion/Filing
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 05/22/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 205

05/08/2019 Post-Conviction Filed
Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

05/08/2019 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 05/22/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

05/22/2019 Motion (9:30 AM) 
Events: 03/25/2019 Notice Of Motion/Filing
ROOM: 205 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 05/22/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2

05/22/2019 Hearing (9:30 AM) 
Events: 05/08/2019 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 05/22/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2

05/22/2019 Defendant Not In Court (Judicial Officer: Davis, Adrienne E ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2193

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02CR2773001
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05/22/2019 Continuance By Order Of Court (Judicial Officer: Davis, Adrienne E )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2193
CDATE: 06/10/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

06/10/2019 Order of Court (9:30 AM) 
Events: 05/22/2019 Continuance By Order Of Court
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 06/10/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2

06/10/2019 Continuance By Order Of Court (Judicial Officer: Davis, Adrienne E )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2193
CDATE: 06/18/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

06/18/2019 Order of Court (9:30 AM) 
Events: 06/10/2019 Continuance By Order Of Court
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 06/18/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2

06/18/2019 Defendant In Custody (Judicial Officer: Atcherson, Sophia ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2150

06/18/2019 Defendant Not In Court (Judicial Officer: Atcherson, Sophia ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2150

06/18/2019 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Atcherson, Sophia ) 
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2150
CDATE: 06/25/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

06/25/2019 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 06/18/2019 Continuance By Agreement
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 06/25/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2

06/25/2019 Continuance By Order Of Court (Judicial Officer: Kenworthy, Diana L )
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2003
CDATE: 07/05/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2
ROOM: 203

07/05/2019 Continued to (9:30 AM) 
Events: 07/05/2019 Motion Filed
CDATE: 07/05/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02CR2773001
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07/05/2019 Continued to (9:30 AM) 
Events: 07/05/2019 Motion Filed
CDATE: 07/05/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2

07/05/2019 Order of Court (9:30 AM) 
Events: 06/25/2019 Continuance By Order Of Court
ROOM: 203 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 07/05/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2

07/05/2019 Motion Filed (Judicial Officer: Davis, Adrienne E ) 
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2193
CDATE: 07/05/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2
D
MODB: 2
DESC: MOTION FOR LEAVE TO FILE SUCCESSIVE PC

07/05/2019 Motion Filed (Judicial Officer: Davis, Adrienne E ) 
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: 203 
JDGE: 2193
CDATE: 07/05/2019
C: 09:30 AM - 2
D
MODB: 2
DESC: MOTION FOR TRIAL TRANSCRIPTS

07/16/2019 Notification Sent To Defendant
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

08/09/2019 Notice Of Appeal Filed, Transferred
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

08/09/2019 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 08/16/2019
C: 09:00 AM - V
ROOM: 405

08/14/2019 Notice Of Notice Of Appeal Mailed
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE

08/16/2019 Hearing (9:00 AM) 
Events: 08/09/2019 Hearing Date Assigned
ROOM: 405 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 08/16/2019
C: 09:00 AM - V

08/16/2019 Illinois State Appellate Defender Appointed (Judicial Officer: Martin, LeRoy K, Jr. ) 
ROOM: 405 
JDGE: 1844

08/16/2019 Order Of Court Free Report Of Proceedings Ordered (Judicial Officer: Martin, LeRoy K, Jr. ) 
ROOM: 405 
JDGE: 1844

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02CR2773001
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08/16/2019 Memo Of Orders & Notice Of Appeal Picked-Up (Judicial Officer: Martin, LeRoy K, Jr. ) 
ROOM: 405 
JDGE: 1844

08/26/2019 Appellate Court Number Assigned
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
0000
DESC: AC# 1-19-1697

10/21/2019 Restricted
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
0000
DESC: (1VOL) CASE FILE IMAGED

12/27/2019 Case Efiled to Appellate Court
AC#19-1697

DATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
Total Charges 18.00
Total Payments and Credits 18.00
Balance Due as of  12/14/2020 0.00

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02CR2773001
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People of the State of Illinois vs. EDGAR NARONJO §
§
§
§
§
§
§
§

Location: Criminal Division
Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M.

Filed on: 06/02/1998
Central Booking 

Number/Document Control 
Number:

011067878

IR Number: 1037089
Record Division Number: C311556

Related Case Number: 98-1100836

CASE INFORMATION

Offense Statute Deg Date
Jurisdiction: Chicago Police Department
001. CARRY/POSSESS FIREARM 720-5/24-1(A)

(4)1
F4 01/01/1900

DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 001
Arrest: 05/21/1998 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

002. CARRY/POSSES FIREARM IN PUBLIC 720-5/24-1(A)
(10)1

F4 01/01/1900

DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 002
Arrest: 05/21/1998 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

Statistical Closures
07/22/1998       Guilty Plea

Bonds
Deposit Bond     #D6946206     $200.00
03/13/1999 Closed
03/13/1999 Archived
05/22/1998 Cash or Deposit Bond Posted
06/08/1998 Deposit Date
Counts: 001, 002

Case Type: Felony Information

Case
Status: 07/22/1998 Case Disposed

DATE CASE ASSIGNMENT

Current Case Assignment
Case Number 98CR1576001
Court Criminal Division
Date Assigned 06/02/1998
Judicial Officer Gaughan, Vincent M.

PARTY INFORMATION

Lead Attorneys
Defendant NARONJO, EDGAR KLOAK, RICHARD C

Retained
773-320-0107(W)

Plaintiff OF ILLINOIS, PEOPLE OF THE STATE

DATE EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT INDEX

05/22/1998 Bond Setting 
T Originating Case Number98110083601

Judicial Order $2,000.00 (@10% $200.00)
Deposit Bond

06/01/1998 Indictment/Information-Clerks Office-Presiding Judge
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
CDATE: 06/12/1998
C: 09:00 AM - 1

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 98CR1576001
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ROOM: 101 
DESC: 98CR1576001 ID# CR100391371

06/08/1998 Bond Setting 
Judicial Order $2,000.00 (@10% $200.00)
Deposit Bond

06/12/1998 Continued to (9:00 AM) 
Events: 06/01/1998 Indictment/Information-Clerks Office-Presiding Judge
ROOM: 101 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 06/12/1998
C: 09:00 AM - 1

06/12/1998 Continued to (9:00 AM) 
Events: 06/12/1998 Case Assigned
ROOM: 500 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 06/12/1998
C: 09:00 AM - 1

06/12/1998 Case Assigned (Judicial Officer: FITZGERALD, THOMAS R. ) 
ROOM: 101 
JDGE: 0124
CDATE: 06/12/1998
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: 500

06/12/1998 Defendant Arraigned (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553

06/12/1998 Plea Of Not Guilty (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553

06/12/1998 Discovery Answer Filed (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARONJO, EDGAR
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
MODB: 1

06/12/1998 Motion Deft - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. )
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
CDATE: 07/01/1998
C: 09:30 AM - 2

07/01/1998 Motion Defendant (9:30 AM) 
Events: 06/12/1998 Motion Deft - Continuance
CDATE: 07/01/1998
C: 09:30 AM - 2

07/01/1998 Continuance By Agreement (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
CDATE: 07/22/1998
C: 09:30 AM - 2

07/22/1998 By Agreement (9:30 AM) 
Events: 07/01/1998 Continuance By Agreement
CDATE: 07/22/1998
C: 09:30 AM - 2

07/22/1998 Charge Amended To Misdemeanor (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 98CR1576001

PAGE 2 OF 5 Printed on 12/14/2020 at 3:07 PM



ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
REF: CALL

07/22/1998 Plea Of Guilty (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
REF: CALL

07/22/1998 Jury Waived (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553

07/22/1998 Finding Of Guilty (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
REF: CALL

07/22/1998 Pre-Sentence Investigation Ordered and Continued (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553

07/22/1998 Defendant Sentence Conditional Discharge (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
REF: CALL
MIN TERM: 12M
DESC: NON REPORTING.

07/22/1998 Defendant Fined (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
REF: CALL
AMOUNT: 100.00

Amount: 100.00

07/22/1998 Mittimus To Issue (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553

07/22/1998 Defendant Advised Of Right To Appeal (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. ) 
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553

07/22/1998 Change Priority Status (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M. )
ROOM: 500 
JDGE: 1553
REF: M

07/22/1998 Plea (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M.)
    001.  CARRY/POSSESS FIREARM
              Plea of Guilty
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 001

    002.  CARRY/POSSES FIREARM IN PUBLIC
              Plea of Guilty
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 002

07/22/1998 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M.)
    001.  CARRY/POSSESS FIREARM
              Charge Amended to Misdemeanor
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 001

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 98CR1576001
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    002.  CARRY/POSSES FIREARM IN PUBLIC
              Charge Amended to Misdemeanor
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 002

07/22/1998 Amended Disposition (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M.)  Reason:  Conversion 
    001.  CARRY/POSSESS FIREARM
              Plea of Guilty
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 001

    002.  CARRY/POSSES FIREARM IN PUBLIC
              Plea of Guilty
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 002

07/22/1998 Amended Disposition (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M.)  Reason:  Conversion 
    001.  CARRY/POSSESS FIREARM
              Finding of Guilty
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 001

    002.  CARRY/POSSES FIREARM IN PUBLIC
              Finding of Guilty
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 002

07/22/1998 Sentence (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M.)
    001.  CARRY/POSSESS FIREARM
              Conditional Discharge

Converted Disposition:
Fine Code: 0550
Description: DEFENDANT FINED 
Disp Date: 07/22/1998
Amount: 100.00

IL Criminal
Charge Disposition Type

Type: Guilty Plea
Supervision Type

Status: Conversion Sentence Status
Type: Conditional Discharge
Term: 12 Months
Start Date: 07/22/1998
Comment: DEF SENT CONDITIONAL DISCHARG NON REPORTING.

07/22/1998 Sentence (Judicial Officer: Gaughan, Vincent M.)
    002.  CARRY/POSSES FIREARM IN PUBLIC
              Conditional Discharge

Converted Disposition:
Fine Code: 0550
Description: DEFENDANT FINED 
Disp Date: 07/22/1998
Amount: 100.00

IL Criminal
Charge Disposition Type

Type: Guilty Plea
Supervision Type

Status: Conversion Sentence Status
Type: Conditional Discharge
Term: 12 Months
Start Date: 07/22/1998
Comment: DEF SENT CONDITIONAL DISCHARG NON REPORTING.

07/23/1998 Cash Bond Refund To Attorney
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 98CR1576001
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REF: B001
983062

07/23/1998 Cash Bond Refund Processed Forwarded Accounting Department
ROOM: CLERK'S OFFICE 
DESC: D6946206 $180

DATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Defendant  NARONJO, EDGAR
Total Charges 20.00
Total Payments and Credits 20.00
Balance Due as of  12/14/2020 0.00

Defendant  NARONJO, EDGAR
Deduct Bond Balance as of  12/14/2020 0.00

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 98CR1576001
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People of the State of Illinois vs. EDGAR NARANJO §
§
§
§
§
§
§

Location: Branch 63
Filed on: 05/20/2001

Central Booking 
Number/Document Control 

Number:

014791466

IR Number: 1037089
Record Division Number: G289407

CASE INFORMATION

Offense Statute Deg Date
Jurisdiction: Chicago Police Department
001. DOMESTIC BATTERY - BODILY 720-5/12-3.2-

A-1
MA 01/01/1900

DCN: 014791466   Sequence: 001
Arrest: 05/19/2001 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

Statistical Closures
06/06/2001  S.O.L.

Bonds
Deposit Bond     #D7346526     $3,000.00
07/10/2001 Closed
07/10/2001 Archived
05/23/2001 Deposit Date
05/21/2001 Cash or Deposit Bond Posted
Counts: 001

Case Type: Municipal

Case
Status: 06/06/2001 Case Disposed

DATE CASE ASSIGNMENT

Current Case Assignment
Case Number 01122189801
Court Branch 63
Date Assigned 05/20/2001

PARTY INFORMATION

Defendant NARANJO, EDGAR

Plaintiff OF ILLINOIS, PEOPLE OF THE STATE

DATE EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT INDEX

05/20/2001 Bond Setting 
Judicial Order $30,000.00 (@10% $3,000.00)
Deposit Bond

05/20/2001 Probable Cause To Detain (Judicial Officer: Kirby, John P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1766

05/20/2001 Defendant Demand For Trial (Judicial Officer: Kirby, John P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1766

05/20/2001 Bail Amount Set (Judicial Officer: Kirby, John P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1766
AMOUNT: 30000.00

Amount: 30,000.00

BRANCH 63

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 01122189801
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05/20/2001 Motion State - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Kirby, John P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1766
CDATE: 06/06/2001
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: BRANCH 63 RM 404

06/06/2001 Motion State (9:00 AM) 
Events: 05/20/2001 Motion State - Continuance
ROOM: BRANCH 63 RM 404 555 W. HARRISON ST. 
CDATE: 06/06/2001
C: 09:00 AM - 1

06/06/2001 Complaining Witness Not In Court (Judicial Officer: Filan, Denise ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 63 RM 404 
JDGE: 1774

06/06/2001 Stricken Off Leave To Reinstate (Judicial Officer: Filan, Denise )
ROOM: BRANCH 63 RM 404 
JDGE: 1774
REF: C001

06/06/2001 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Filan, Denise)
    001.  DOMESTIC BATTERY - BODILY
              Stricken Off - Leave Reinstate
                DCN: 014791466   Sequence: 001

06/11/2001 Cash Bond Refund Processed Forwarded Accounting Department
ROOM: MUNICIPAL DISTRICT 1 
DESC: BOND RELEASED 060601

DATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
Total Charges 300.00
Total Payments and Credits 300.00
Balance Due as of  12/14/2020 0.00

Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
Deduct Bond Balance as of  12/14/2020 0.00

BRANCH 63

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 01122189801
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People of the State of Illinois vs. EDGAR NARANJO §
§
§
§
§
§
§

Location: Criminal Division
Judicial Officer: Martin, LeRoy K, Jr.

Filed on: 10/06/2002
Central Booking 

Number/Document Control 
Number:

015258028

IR Number: 1037089
Record Division Number: HH691346

CASE INFORMATION

Offense Statute Deg Date
Jurisdiction: Chicago Police Department
001. MURDER - FIRST DEGREE 720-5/9-1-A-1 FM 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 001
Arrest: 10/05/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

002. HOME INVASION - CAUSE INJ 720-5/12-11-A-
2

FX 01/01/1900

DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 002
Arrest: 10/05/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

Related Cases
02CR2773001   (Indictment) 

Statistical Closures
10/28/2002  Disposed

Case Type: Municipal

Case
Status: 10/28/2002 Case Disposed

DATE CASE ASSIGNMENT

Current Case Assignment
Case Number 02111920301
Court Criminal Division
Date Assigned 10/06/2002
Judicial Officer Martin, LeRoy K, Jr.

PARTY INFORMATION

Defendant NARANJO, EDGAR

Plaintiff OF ILLINOIS, PEOPLE OF THE STATE

DATE EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT INDEX

10/06/2002 Bond Setting 
Judicial Order - No Bail

10/06/2002 Probable Cause To Detain (Judicial Officer: Myles, Raymond ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1789

10/06/2002 No Bail (Judicial Officer: Myles, Raymond ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1789

10/06/2002 Defendant Demand For Trial (Judicial Officer: Myles, Raymond ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1789

10/06/2002 Motion State - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Myles, Raymond ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1789

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02111920301
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CDATE: 10/07/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101

10/07/2002 Motion State (9:00 AM) 
Events: 10/06/2002 Motion State - Continuance
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 2600 S. CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 10/07/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

10/07/2002 Motion State - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Ford, Nicholas R )
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 
JDGE: 1756
CDATE: 10/25/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101

10/25/2002 Motion State (12:00 PM) 
Events: 10/07/2002 Motion State - Continuance
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 2600 S. CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 10/25/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

10/25/2002 Petition Violation Of Probation Filed (Judicial Officer: Linehan, Neil J ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 
JDGE: 1762

10/25/2002 Defendant Demand For Trial (Judicial Officer: Linehan, Neil J ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 
JDGE: 1762

10/25/2002 Motion State - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Linehan, Neil J )
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 
JDGE: 1762
CDATE: 10/28/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101

10/28/2002 Motion State (12:00 PM) 
Events: 10/25/2002 Motion State - Continuance
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 2600 S. CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 10/28/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

10/28/2002 Superseded By Direct Indictment (Judicial Officer: Sheehan, Kevin M )
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 
JDGE: 1768
REF: CALL
DESC: 02CR27730

10/28/2002 Defendant Demand For Trial (Judicial Officer: Sheehan, Kevin M ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 
JDGE: 1768

10/28/2002 Transferred To Criminal Division (Judicial Officer: Sheehan, Kevin M )
ROOM: BRANCH 66 RM 101 
JDGE: 1768
CDATE: 11/18/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: 101

10/28/2002 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Sheehan, Kevin M)
    001.  MURDER - FIRST DEGREE

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02111920301
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              Superceded by Direct Indictment
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 001

    002.  HOME INVASION - CAUSE INJ
              Superceded by Direct Indictment
                DCN: 015258028   Sequence: 002

11/18/2002 Transferred to Criminal Division (9:00 AM) 
Events: 10/28/2002 Transferred To Criminal Division
ROOM: 101 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 11/18/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02111920301
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People of the State of Illinois vs. EDGAR NARANJO §
§
§
§
§
§
§
§

Location: Branch 43
Judicial Officer: Branch 43, Room 1

Filed on: 07/19/2002
CB2 - Central Booking 

Number:
015258028

Central Booking
Number/Document Control 

Number:

015175939

IR Number: 1037089
Record Division Number: HH495495

CASE INFORMATION

Offense Statute Deg Date
Jurisdiction: Chicago Police Department
001. BATTERY - CAUSE BODILY HA 720-5/12-3-A-1 MA 01/01/1900

DCN: 015175939   Sequence: 001
Arrest: 10/06/2002 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

Statistical Closures
10/16/2002  S.O.L.

Bonds
Recognizance Bond     #I4703404     $1,000.00
01/01/1900 Defendant Released on I Bond
Counts: 001

Case Type: Municipal

Case
Status: 10/16/2002 Case Disposed

DATE CASE ASSIGNMENT

Current Case Assignment
Case Number 02126944101
Court Branch 43
Date Assigned 07/19/2002
Judicial Officer Branch 43, Room 1

PARTY INFORMATION

Defendant NARANJO, EDGAR

Plaintiff OF ILLINOIS, PEOPLE OF THE STATE

DATE EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT INDEX

07/15/2002 Bond Setting 
Rule of Illinois Supreme Court $1,000.00
Recognizance Bond

07/15/2002 Bond Set By Rule Of Court (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P )
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582
CDATE: 08/22/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2

08/22/2002 Bond Set By Rule of Court (9:00 AM) 
Events: 07/15/2002 Bond Set By Rule Of Court
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 3150 W. FLOURNOY 
CDATE: 08/22/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

08/22/2002 Bond Setting 

BRANCH 43

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02126944101
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Judicial Order $3,000.00 (@10% $300.00)
Deposit Bond

08/22/2002 Warrant Sent To Police Agency
ROOM: MUNICIPAL DISTRICT 1

08/22/2002 Bond Forfeiture (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582
REF: B001

08/22/2002 Bail Amount Set (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582
AMOUNT: 3000.00

Amount: 3,000.00

08/22/2002 Continue for Judgment On Forfeiture (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582
CDATE: 09/30/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2

08/22/2002 Warrant Ordered, Warrant Issued (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P )
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582

09/30/2002 Continue for Judgment on Forfeiture (9:00 AM)
Events: 08/22/2002 Continue for Judgment On Forfeiture
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 3150 W. FLOURNOY 
CDATE: 09/30/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

09/30/2002 Judgment On Bond Forfeiture (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P )
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582
REF: B001

09/30/2002 Warrant Outstanding (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582

10/06/2002 Warrant Returned, Executed,Filed (Judicial Officer: Myles, Raymond )
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1789

10/06/2002 Bond To Stand (Judicial Officer: Myles, Raymond ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1789

10/06/2002 Defendant Demand For Trial (Judicial Officer: Myles, Raymond ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1789

10/06/2002 Motion State - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Myles, Raymond ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 1 RM 100 
JDGE: 1789
CDATE: 10/08/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2

10/06/2002 Recall/Execute Sent To Police Agency

BRANCH 43

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02126944101
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ROOM: MUNICIPAL DISTRICT 1

10/08/2002 Motion State (9:00 AM) 
Events: 10/06/2002 Motion State - Continuance
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 3150 W. FLOURNOY 
CDATE: 10/08/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

10/08/2002 Defendant Demand For Trial (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582

10/08/2002 Motion State - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P )
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582
CDATE: 10/16/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2

10/16/2002 Motion State (9:00 AM) 
Events: 10/08/2002 Motion State - Continuance
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 3150 W. FLOURNOY 
CDATE: 10/16/2002
C: 09:00 AM - 1

10/16/2002 Stricken Off Leave To Reinstate (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P )
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582
REF: C001

10/16/2002 Defendant Demand For Trial (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 43 RM 2 
JDGE: 1582

10/16/2002 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Luckman, Marvin P)
    001.  BATTERY - CAUSE BODILY HA
              Stricken Off - Leave Reinstate
                DCN: 015175939   Sequence: 001

BRANCH 43

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 02126944101
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People of the State of Illinois vs. EDGAR NARANJO §
§
§
§
§
§
§

Location: Criminal Department
Filed on: 03/12/1993

Central Booking 
Number/Document Control 

Number:

9344095

IR Number: 1037089
Record Division Number: X101688

CASE INFORMATION

Offense Statute Deg Date
Jurisdiction: Chicago (8th) Chicago Lawn
001. RETAIL THEFT 38 16-A3A MA 01/01/1900

DCN: 9344095   Sequence: 001
Arrest: 03/09/1993 108 - Chicago (8th) Chicago Lawn

Bonds
Deposit Bond     #D6222872     $200.00
05/26/1993 Closed
05/26/1993 Archived
04/06/1993 Cash or Deposit Bond Posted
04/06/1993 Deposit Date
Counts: 001

Case Type: Municipal

Case
Status: 07/08/1993 Case Disposed

DATE CASE ASSIGNMENT

Current Case Assignment
Case Number 93123962701
Court Criminal Department
Date Assigned 03/12/1993

PARTY INFORMATION

Defendant NARANJO, EDGAR

Plaintiff OF ILLINOIS, PEOPLE OF THE STATE

DATE EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT INDEX

03/11/1993 Bond Setting 
RM

Rule of Illinois Supreme Court $2,000.00 (@10% $200.00)
Deposit Bond

03/11/1993 Bond Set By Rule Of Court (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L )
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
CDATE: 03/31/1993
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
DESC: RM

03/31/1993 Bond Set By Rule of Court (2:00 PM) 
Events: 03/11/1993 Bond Set By Rule Of Court
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 555 W. HARRISON ST. 
CDATE: 03/31/1993

03/31/1993 Motion State - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L )
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
CDATE: 04/14/1993

CRIMINAL DEPARTMENT

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 93123962701
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ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
DESC: RM

04/14/1993 Motion State (1:30 PM) 
Events: 03/31/1993 Motion State - Continuance
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 555 W. HARRISON ST. 
CDATE: 04/14/1993

04/14/1993 Warrant Sent To Police Agency (Judicial Officer: McGaughey, Janice R )
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1605
DESC: RM

04/14/1993 Bond Forfeiture/Warrant (Judicial Officer: McGaughey, Janice R )
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1605
REF: B001
AMOUNT: 3000.00
DESC: RM

Amount: 3,000.00

05/17/1993 Motion To Vacate Bond Forfeiture - Filed (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L ) 
Filing Party:  Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
S
MODB: 2
DESC: RM

05/17/1993 Bond Forfeiture Vacated (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L )
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
REF: B001
DESC: RM

05/17/1993 Recall/Execute Sent To Police Agency (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L )
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
DESC: RM

05/17/1993 Motion Vacate Bond Forfeiture - Recall Warrant (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
REF: W001
DESC: RM

05/17/1993 Warrant Quashed (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
REF: W001
DESC: RM

05/17/1993 Motion Deft - Continuance (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L )
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
CDATE: 07/08/1993
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
DESC: RM

07/08/1993 Motion Defendant (9:30 AM) 
Events: 05/17/1993 Motion Deft - Continuance
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 555 W. HARRISON ST. 
CDATE: 07/08/1993

CRIMINAL DEPARTMENT

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 93123962701
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07/08/1993 Bond Forfeiture - Stricken Off Leave (Judicial Officer: Bush, Bernetta D ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1587
REF: C001
DESC: RM

07/08/1993 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Bush, Bernetta D)
    001.  RETAIL THEFT
              Bond Forfeiture - SOL
                DCN: 9344095   Sequence: 001

07/14/1993 Costs Waived (Judicial Officer: Bush, Bernetta D ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1587
DESC: RM

08/10/1993 Judgment On Bond Forfeiture (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L )
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
REF: B001
DESC: RM

08/10/1993 Execution Of Issue (Judicial Officer: Bowie, Preston L ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 49 RM 900 
JDGE: 1516
REF: C001
DESC: RM

DATE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Defendant  NARANJO, EDGAR
Deduct Bond Balance as of  12/14/2020 120.00

CRIMINAL DEPARTMENT

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 93123962701
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People of the State of Illinois vs. EDGAR HARANJO §
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§

Location: Criminal Division
Judicial Officer: Martin, LeRoy K, Jr.

Filed on: 05/29/1998
Central Booking 

Number/Document Control 
Number:

011067878

IR Number: 1037089
Record Division Number: C311556

Ticket Number: T7482134
T7482133

CASE INFORMATION

Offense Statute Deg Date
Jurisdiction: Chicago Police Department
001. CARRY/POSSESS FIREARM/ 720 5/24-1(A) F4 01/01/1900

DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 001
Arrest: 05/21/1998 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

002. T7482134  (Attempt) 625 5-3-707 TR 01/01/1900
DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 002

Arrest: 05/21/1998 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department
003. T7482133  (Attempt) 9 20-010C TR 01/01/1900

DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 003
Arrest: 05/21/1998 IL0CPD000 - Chicago Police Department

Related Cases
98CR1576001   (Indictment) 

Statistical Closures
05/22/1998  Nolle

Case Type: Municipal

Case
Status: 05/22/1998 Case Disposed

DATE CASE ASSIGNMENT

Current Case Assignment
Case Number 98110083601
Court Criminal Division
Date Assigned 05/29/1998
Judicial Officer Martin, LeRoy K, Jr.

PARTY INFORMATION

Defendant HARANJO, EDGAR

Plaintiff OF ILLINOIS, PEOPLE OF THE STATE

DATE EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT INDEX

05/22/1998 Bond Setting 
T

Judicial Order $2,000.00 (@10% $200.00)
Deposit Bond

05/22/1998 Finding Probable Cause (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 44 ROOM 2 
JDGE: 1746
REF: C001
DESC: T

05/22/1998 Non-Suit (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 44 ROOM 2 
JDGE: 1746

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 98110083601
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REF: C003
DESC: T

05/22/1998 Nolle Prosequi (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 44 ROOM 2 
JDGE: 1746
REF: C002
DESC: T

05/22/1998 Probable Cause To Detain (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 44 ROOM 2 
JDGE: 1746
DESC: T

05/22/1998 Bail Amount Set (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 44 ROOM 2 
JDGE: 1746
AMOUNT: 2000.00
DESC: T

Amount: 2,000.00

05/22/1998 Defendant Demand For Trial (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M ) 
ROOM: BRANCH 44 ROOM 2 
JDGE: 1746
DESC: T

05/22/1998 Transferred To Criminal Division (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M )
ROOM: BRANCH 44 ROOM 2 
JDGE: 1746
CDATE: 06/12/1998
ROOM: 101 
DESC: T

05/22/1998 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M)
    001.  CARRY/POSSESS FIREARM/
              Finding of Probable Cause
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 001

05/22/1998 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M)
    003.  T7482133 (Attempt)
              Motion City Non-Suit
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 003

05/22/1998 Disposition (Judicial Officer: Claps, Joseph M)
    002.  T7482134 (Attempt)
              Nolle Prosequi
                DCN: 011067878   Sequence: 002

06/12/1998 Transferred to Criminal Division (9:30 AM) 
Events: 05/22/1998 Transferred To Criminal Division
ROOM: 101 26TH & CALIFORNIA 
CDATE: 06/12/1998

CRIMINAL DIVISION

CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. 98110083601
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Exhibit 9 
 
 



The undersigned, a legal representative and General Director of the company HERING S. 
A. de C.V., declares the following: 

HERING S.A. de C.V. is a Mexican construction company that has existed for 20 years 
under different names. It is very important for us to act as a socially responsible company, 
promoting the achievement of better standards of living and access to a better education for 
our staff, so that they can improve themselves and our social environment. We have the firm 
conviction that everyone has the right to decent work that guarantees an improvement in their 
standard of living. With this aim, we have implemented a program to allocate a percentage of 
our job openings to vulnerable people, whether they are seniors, first time job seekers and/or 
seeking their re-integration into society. 

For these reasons we have offered the administrative assistant position to Mr. Edgar 
Naranjo Hernandez, hoping that this is the opportunity he needs to achieve his re-integration 
into society in a dignified manner. 

 
Thank you for your kind attention. I remain available to any questions or concerns. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Gustavo Hernandez Ruiz 
 

  





 I would like to present this letter to express my special interest in cooperating with Mr. 
Edgar Naranjo Hernandez so that he can achieve his goal of re-integrating himself into society in 
a healthy and satisfactory way. For this reason, knowing that he has no residence in Mexico, I 
have offered him my own home for him to live, while he works and eventually achieves his own 
independence. 
 My house is located in Mexico, specifically in Calle Tepal No. 3A in the Mayaquén 
neighborhood in San Andres Cholula, Puebla, Postal Code 72825. This is very convenient 
because it is located 10 kilometers from Mr. Edgar Naranjo’s place of employment, and has 
access to many public transportation routes.  
 

Thank you for your kind attention. I remain available to any questions or concerns. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Gustavo Hernandez Ruiz 
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Exhibit 16 
 
 



Mr. Governor J.B. Pritzker,  
 
Through this letter we want to express to you that the problem in which our son Edgar Naranjo 
got involved – it was something very surprising for my wife, Celia Naranjo, and for myself, 
Zenaido Naranjo, since our children had never been a problem for my wife and I before, and 
since our whole life has been spent working so that our children lack nothing. At present, my 
son, Alejandro Naranjo, and my daughter, Yuri Naranjo, are parents with stable marriages of 
their own. 
 
When the trial against my son Edgar Naranjo took place, and after some hearings, the judge’s 
verdict of 46 years in prison was carried out – a verdict which I think was unjust, because it was 
only a home invasion, but unfortunately, there was nothing we could do. 
 
All this has taken 18 years, and every day we ask God that today or tomorrow our son Edgar may 
have a new opportunity. 
 
That is why we are writing this letter to you, Mr. Governor, so that you can review this petition 
that Edgar’s lawyers will submit, and which the Mexican Consulate supports, so that you can 
review it, and make a decision that is fair. 
 
We have resided in Chicago for 39 years. My wife, Celia Naranjo, became a citizen of this 
beautiful country and I only wait for the immigration call to finalize my citizenship, too. 
 
Mr. Governor: 18 long years have passed, and our son has never been a problem within the 
prison because through this time, he has studied, he has worked, and he now reads the Bible to 
his peers. That shows that he is not a bad person. 
 
It is for these reasons that we, as parents, write this letter to you, Mr. Governor, appealing to 
your good judgment. 
 
Mr. Governor: May God bless you and protect you, but above all, may God enlighten you to 
make a just decision. 
 
To the Mexican Consulate, and to the lawyers who became interested in Edgar's case - our 
gratitude, since what you all are doing is not for profit. Thank you. May God bless you. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Zenaido and Celia Naranjo 
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ILLINOIS PRISONER REVIEW BOARD  
 

________________________________________________________________________ 

In the Matter of 
 

EDGAR NARANJO 

 
PETITION FOR EXECUTIVE CLEMENCY 

 
Honorable J.B. Pritzker, Governor  

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PETITIONER EDGAR NARANJO’S RE-ENTRY PLAN 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

A comprehensive release plan that will provide Edgar with the structural, relational, 
emotional, and vocational support necessary to facilitate his positive reintegration back 

into society has been developed. Below, Megan Grenville, Marissa Jackson, and Alix 
Johnson, second-year Northwestern law students, detail the release plans, in consultation 

with attorney Steven Drizin.  

 

1. Edgar will have a strong network of family and friends to assist him in his 
transition back to the community.   

 
The unconditional love and support from Edgar’s family has not waivered since he was 

first incarcerated 18 years ago. His family has consistently visited him in prison1, spoken 
to him on the phone, and provided financial support to Edgar. This plan was developed in 

collaboration with Edgar’s family, primarily his sister, who discussed how their family 
would support Edgar in every aspect of his life: housing, financial needs, transportation, 

emotional stability, employment, education, and spiritual when he is eventually released.  
Additionally, Edgar’s family is aware of the complexity of the re-entry process and are 

prepared for any issue that may arise when Edgar is released. 
 

Supportive relationships are crucial for promoting physiological and psychological health 
among returning citizens because the consequences of stressful relationships or social 

isolation can entail harm in these health areas.2 Families are also key sources of financial 

	
1 It has been found that visitation and specifically more frequent visitation has been associated with lower 
recidivism.   See Bales, W., and Mears, D. (2008). Inmate Social Ties and the Transition to Society: Does 
Visitation Reduce Recidivism? Journal of Research in Crime and Delinquency, 45(3), 287-321.  
2 Thomas J. Mowen et al., “Family Matters: Moving Beyond ‘If’ Family Support Matters to ‘Why’ Family 
Support Matters during Reentry from Prison,” Journal of Research in Crime and Delinquency 56(4) 483-
523, 485, https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/0022427818820902 (2019; first published on 
	



support because many of them provide or assist with finding housing and securing 
employment.3  Stronger family relationships decrease the chances of returning citizens 

reengaging with criminal activity and suffering from reincarceration, and thus these family 
ties improve public safety.4 More precisely, stronger familial bonds, marked by affectional 

ties and feelings of warmth and companionship, are associated with lower desires for 
deviant behavior.5 Aside from tangible resources, family members are important sources 

of emotional support. 6  Higher levels of emotional support from family members are 
associated with an immense reduction in reoffending.7  

   
Edgar has maintained remarkably strong connections with his parents and two siblings 

throughout his incarceration. His mother, Celia, and father, Zenaido, have been unwavering 
pillars of support and strength for their son. In addition to providing guidance and keeping 

Edgar up to date on their family’s lives through twice weekly phone calls and monthly 
visits, his parents have been planning for how they can best support him upon his release 

since he was first incarcerated in 2002.  
 

Edgar’s sister, Yuri Martinez, speaks to Edgar every other day on the phone, and visits him 
at least once a month, most recently two weeks before COVID-19 visitation suspensions 

were put in place on March 21, 2020. She has been an integral part of the clemency process, 
and has been the primary point of contact for Edgar's legal team over the past three months. 

Yuri and Neris, her husband, are willing and ready to provide any type of support Edgar 
may need from them.  

 
In addition to his mother, father, sister, and brother, Edgar has a supportive family and 

positive connections with friends in his community, both in Chicago and in Mexico. He 
has many cousins, aunts, grandmothers, nieces, and nephews all waiting for him to come 

home so they can help him get back on his feet and be successful. Additionally, Edgar has 
had the support of his legal and social work team at the Bluhm Legal Clinic since they 

began representing him in November of 2020, and will provide an additional level of 
support for Edgar if released. 

  

2. Edgar will have free, secure, and stable housing with his cousin upon release.  

	
December 26, 2018). See also, Emily Mooney & Nila Bala, R Street, “The Importance of	Supporting 
Family Connections to Ensure Successful Re-Entry,” https://www.rstreet.org/wp-
content/uploads/2018/10/Final-Short-No.-63-1.pdf, 2 (October 2018).  
3 Id. at 2; See also, Nathan W. Link et al., “Consequences of mental and physical health for reentry and 
recidivism: Towards a health-based model of desistence,” Criminology 57(3) 544-73, 547, 
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/epdf/10.1111/1745-9125.12213 (June 10, 2019).  
4  See Mooney & Bala, supra note 2, at 3; See also, Link et al., supra note 3, at 544-73, 547; Maria 
Berghuis, “Reentry Programs for Adult Male Offender Recidivism and Reintegration: A Systemic Review 
and Meta-Analysis,” International Journal of Offender Therapy and Comparative Criminology 62(14) 
4655-4676, 4656, https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/0306624X18778448 (June 11, 2018). 
5 See Mowen et al., supra note 2, at 56(4) 483-523, 486. 
6 See Link et al., supra note 3, at 544-73, 547. 
7 Caitlin J. Taylor, “The Family’s Role in the Reintegration of Formerly Incarcerated Individuals: The 
Direct Effects of Emotional Support, The Prison Journal 96(3) 331-354, 331, 
https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/0032885516635085 (February 26, 2016).			



 

Stable housing is imperative for successful re-entry because a lack of this stability can 

lead to homelessness and to recidivism in the forms of re-arrest and/or reimprisonment.8 
This is because the strains and stresses from housing instability can result in re-offending 

as a coping mechanism.9 The first month following prison release is a particularly 
vulnerable period for homelessness and/or recidivism.10  Housing is often perceived as 

the foundation for achieving re-entry success due to the fact that housing provides spares 
for returning citizens to obtain regular employment, desist from crimes, and establish 

positive health behaviors.11 Furthermore, housing is connected to self-identity in that it 
allows returning citizens to create economic independence, self-sufficiency, escape the 

stigmas of prison, and be defined as full citizens.12  

 

Because Edgar’s legal status expired while he has been incarcerated, upon his release he 
plans to voluntarily depart for Mexico. He will live with his cousin Gustavo Hernández 

Ruíz in his home in San Andrés Cholula, Puebla. Edgar will have his own bedroom and 
will have the full support of his cousin. The address of the home is Calle Tepal No. 3A, 

Mayaquén, San Andrés Cholula, Puebla 72825. It is located 10km from the work site 
where Edgar will be employed, and is easily accessible via several public transportation 

routes. 

 

Edgar’s parents plan to re-locate to Mexico and live in a building they own there upon 
Edgar’s release. They, along with Gustavo and their extended family, will provide Edgar 

with the immediate emotional and financial support that he needs upon release. They are 

looking forward to spending more time with Edgar and helping him get back on his feet. 

 

3. Edgar will receive employment, vocational and educational training and 

support. 

 

Workforce development is paramount to the success of returning citizens because 
employment is directly correlated with reduced recidivism rates,13 and the sooner an 

	
8 American Psychological Association, “From prisons to communities: Confronting re-entry challenges and 
social inequality,” https://www.apa.org/pi/ses/resources/indicator/2018/03/prisons-to-communities (March 
2018). See also, Leah A. Jacobs & Aaron Gottlieb, “The Effect of Housing Circumstances on Recidivism:	
Evidence from a Sample of People on Probation in San Francisco,” Criminal Justice and	Behavior 47(9) 
1097-1115, 1098-1100, https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/0093854820942285 (August 6, 2020).  
9 Id. at 47(9) 1097-1115, 1099. 
10 See American Psychological Association, supra note 12.  
11 Danya E. Keene et al., “Stigma, housing and identity after prison,” The Sociological Review Monographs 
66(4) 799-815, 801, 805, 810-811, https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/10.1177/0038026118777447 (June 12, 
2018). 
12 Id.  
13 See Link et al., supra note 3, at 57(3) 544-573. 



individual is employed post-release, the less likely he/she is to reoffend.14 This is because 
employment focuses these citizens’ time with pro-social activities which consequently 

make them less likely to engage in behavior that could result in a re-arrest.15 
Additionally, employment “enables individuals to contribute income to their families, 

which can generate more personal support, stronger positive relationships, enhanced self-

esteem, and improved mental health.”16 

 

Edgar has a plan for employment and training upon his release. Edgar’s cousin, Gustavo 

Hernández Ruíz, owns and operates his own construction company in Puebla, Mexico, 
Hering S.A. de C.V., which has been a successful business for twenty years. Edgar will 

engage in both administrative and translation work for Hering while also pursuing his 

long-term goal of becoming a motivational speaker.  

 

Edgar has taken advantage of every employment opportunity available to him throughout 

his incarceration and looks forward to bringing his strong work ethic to the job that 

awaits him in Mexico.  

 

In addition to meaningful employment opportunities, educational services are vital for 

those re-entering into their communities because education and training not only 
substantially reduce the likelihood that returning citizens will commit another offense, 

they also expand the prospects of them finding employment.17 Edgar has completed 24 
credit hours toward his associate’s degree through Lake Land College, with seven 

remaining to complete the degree requirements.18 He has earned several academic 
achievement designations through Lake Land19 and completed writing skills, restorative 

justice and prison exchange program courses through Northeastern Illinois University and 

DePaul University.20 

	
14 Peter Cove & Lee Bowes, Real Clear Politics “Immediate Access to Employment Reduces Recidivism,” 
https://www.realclearpolitics.com/articles/2015/06/11/immediate_access_to_employment_reduces_recidivi
sm_126939.html (June 11, 2015).  
15 Le’Ann Duran et al., The Council of State Governments Justice Center, “Integrated Reentry and 
Employment Strategies: Reducing Recidivism and Promoting Job Readiness,” 
https://bja.ojp.gov/sites/g/files/xyckuh186/files/Publications/CSG-Reentry-and-Employment.pdf 
(September 2013); See also Berghuis, supra note 4, at 62(14) 4655-4676, 4656; See also, National Institute 
of Corrections, “Create a Culture of Employment Readiness and Retention for Incarcerated Individuals,” 
https://info.nicic.gov/cirs/node/39 
16 Id.; See also, Link et al., supra note 3, at 57(3) 544-573. 
17 RTI International, “Building a Reentry Education Continuum: Helping incarcerated adults and youth 
successfully transition to education and careers post-release,” https://www.rti.org/impact/building-reentry-
education-continuum. See also, Lois M. Davis, RAND Corporation, “Higher Education Programs in Prison: 
What We Know Now and What We Should Focus on Going Forward,” 
https://www.rand.org/content/dam/rand/pubs/perspectives/PE300/PE342/RAND_PE342.pdf 3 (August 
2019).  
18 A copy of Edgar’s transcript is attached as Exhibit 10. 
19 A copy of the certificates from Lake Land college are attached as Exhibit 10. 
20 A copy of the certificates from Northeastern Illinois University and DePaul University are attached as 
Exhibit 10. 



 

All of the skills Edgar has learned through his coursework and work experience will 

serve him well in his employment and in any future employment opportunities. His 
networks of support agree Edgar has put in the work to reform himself and is well-

positioned to be a successful, contributing member of society. 

 

4. Edgar’s strong ties to his faith will assist in his successful re-entry.  

	
Participating in religious programs contributes to positive adjustment while the inmate is 

in prison and decreases recidivism when released.21 Edgar’s faith has helped him repent 
and find peace and purpose. Edgar has done a significant amount of self-reflection and 

spiritual work while incarcerated, and his faith has become a fundamental, prominent 

aspect of who he is.  

 

In addition to the courses outlined above, Edgar has completed two religious studies 

programs through United Christian Bible Institute22 that have impacted his sense of 
spirituality and outlook on community and restorative justice. Edgar stated that believing 

in a higher power is necessary for him to make it through his time in prison and face daily 
obstacles that incarceration presents. For Edgar, his spirituality is a significant strength 

that will provide him with additional support if released and is a positive coping 
mechanism that Edgar turns to during difficult times. He plans to attend weekly mass and 

find community within a local church upon his release and relocation to Mexico. 

	
5. Edgar will have access to affordable, quality medical care.  

 

Another component of the continuum of support upon release from prison is strong 
medical care.23 Although Edgar does not report any major medical conditions, it is 

imperative he receives medical care upon his release.  Having access and linkage to 
community-based medical services will provide Edgar with a continuity of care upon his 

release.  

 

Edgar will have access to quality medical care for any physical and mental health needs 
he may have. Edgar’s cousin Gustavo will connect him with local providers and assist 

him in making and attending appointments as needed.  

 

	
21 Johnson, B. (2008). Faith Factor and Prisoner Reentry. Interdisciplinary Journal of Research on 
Religion, 4. 
22 A copy of the certificates from United Christian Bible Institute are attached as Exhibit 12. 
23 Duwe, G. (2012). Evaluating the Minnesota comprehensive offender reentry plan (MCORP): Results from 
a randomized experiment.  Justice Quarterly, 29(3), 347-383. 



The continuum of supports in place with Edgar’s release plan are designed to 
encourage success when he is eventually released back the community if his petition 

for clemency is granted.  
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